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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors is responsible for the financial statements of Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited and
financial information appearing in the Annual Report. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai
financial reporting standards, under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543, and the financial reporting requirements of the Securities
and Exchange Commission under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 with selection of appropriate accounting policies
and consistently applied. Reasonable care was taken into account when compiling the financial statements, and significant
information was sufficiently disclosed in the accompanying notes. The Company’s auditor has reviewed and audited the
financial statements and expressed an unqualified opinion in the auditor’s report. It was also ensured that the Company
has adequate risk management systems, good governance, sufficient internal controls, and adheres to related rules and
regulations for use by the company’s shareholders and investors

The Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee consisting of members who are independent directors to be
in charge of the quality of the financial statements and efficiency of the internal control system. The opinions of the Audit
Committee on such issues are included in the Audit Committee’s report published in the Annual Report.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the overall internal controls of the Company are sufficient and appropriate,
with reasonable confidence in the financial statements ended on December 31, 2019, which have been audited according
to generally accepted accounting standards by the Company’s auditor (PwC). The auditor has given the opinion that the
financial statements correctly indicate the financial status and operational outcomes of the Company in essence and with
adherence to Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

(Mr. Somchainuk Engtrakul)

Chairman

(Dr. Somporn Suebthawilkul)

Managing Director

2 Financial Statement Report Annual Report 2019
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

My opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements of Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited (the Company)
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial
Reporting Standards (TFRSs).

What | have audited

The Company’s financial statements comprise:

+ the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019;

+ the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

+ the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

+ the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

+ the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (TSAs). My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of my report. | am independent of the Company in accordance with the Federation of
Accounting Professions under the Royal Patronage of his Majesty the King’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the
financial statements, and | have fulfiled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

4 Financial Statement Report Annual Report 2019
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my
audit of the financial statements of the current period. | determine one key audit matter: Valuation of
Insurance contract liabilities. The matter was addressed in the context of my audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do not provide a separate opinion on the
matter.

Valuation of Insurance contract liabilities
- Refer to Note 2.5 (accounting policy) and
Note 14 (financial disclosures)

Insurance contract liabilities of Baht 17,701 milion My key audit procedures in relation to the claim

composed of two key components: liabilities included:
»  Obtained an understanding of the controls used when
1. Claim liabilities includes reported claim identifying and approving the qualifications of the
reserves not yet settled, claim payable, and surveyors and also obtained evidence of approval for
claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), as the new surveyor as an audit evidence.

well as claims handling reserve and payable + Evaluated and tested the internal control

environment relating to the core insurance system

2. Premium liabilities which are also called used to process the technical data and integrate that
unearned premium reserve. data into the accounting system.

» Evaluated and tested the design effectiveness and
implementation of key controls around the claims
handling and claim liabilities setting processes.
| examined evidence of the key accounting controls
over the valuation of claim liabilities incurred by
examining related supporting documentation and
the approval by an authorised person.

» Checked samples of claim reserves from the core
insurance system by comparing the estimated
amount of the claim reserve to the appropriate
documentation, such as reports from the surveyor.
Moreover, we checked samples of claim handling
reserve by checking with invoices from surveyors.

6 Financial Statement Report Annual Report 2019
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

8

| focussed on the valuation of the claim liabilities
as this involved a high level of judgement and
expertise to evaluate claims liabilities as follows:

1) Claim liabilities are provided upon receipt
of claim advices from the insured for the
amount reported. The Company uses
external surveyors or internal claim specialist
for certain claim cases to assess the claim
payments and management records the
claim liabilities based on the surveyor’s
reports.

2) Claim incurred but not reported (“IBNR”),
| focussed on the balance because of the
complexity involved in the estimation process,
and the significant judgements that
management needed to make to estimate
the related balance.

Estimating IBNR involves significant judgement
because of the size of the liability and inherent
uncertainty when assessing the expected future
payments for the claims incurred. In particular,
judgement is needed to estimate payments for
claims that have been incurred as of the end of
the year but have not yet been reported to the
Company at the reporting date. In addition,
certain types of insurance contracts where there
is a greater length of time between the initial
claim event and the agreed settlement also may
tend to incur greater variability between initial
estimates and the final settlement.

Financial Statement Report

+ Tested the claim payables and claim reserves
which are significant in profit and loss. Also, by
checking settled claims with the surveyor’s report
and supporting documents showing claim payments,
and checking claim reserves with the Iatest
surveyor’s reports. In addition, we tested the
reserve related to claim handling reserve by
checking with invoices from surveyors.

* Applied analytical review procedures (including
monitoring the change in loss ratios) to analyse the
significant changes that took place over the
reporting period

» Assessed the sufficiency of the disclosures in the
financial statements.

My key audit procedures in relation to claims incurred
but not reported (IBNR) included gaining an
understanding of the process used by the Company
to estimate the claims incurred but not reported and
actuarial reserve methods. | also tested the control
over claims handling and case reserve setting
processes and performed the following detailed tests:
+ Evaluated the design effectiveness and
implementation of key controls around the claims
handling and claim liabilities setting processes
because historical claims data is a key input to the
actuarial estimates. | examined evidence of the key
accounting controls over the valuation of claim
liabilities which are recorded in financial statements
by examining related supporting documentation and
approval by an authorised person of the Company.

Annual Report 2019
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

10

The valuation of IBNR relies on the quality of
the underlying data and assumptions. It
involves complex and subjective judgements
about future events, both internal and external
to the business, for which small changes in
assumptions can have a material effect on the
estimate.

The key assumptions that underpin the reserve
calculations include the expected ultimate loss
ratio and the loss development factor by types of
insurances. The valuation of insurance liabilities
depends on complete and accurate data about
the number of claims, claim amounts and the
pattern of historical claims since these are often
used to form expectations about future claims. If
the data used to calculate insurance liabilities, or
to form judgements over key assumptions, is not
complete and accurate then, material impacts on
the valuation of insurance liabilities may arise. As
a result of the above factors, insurance liabilities
represent a significant risk.

Financial Statement Report

Checked samples of claim reserves in the claim
module in the core insurance system by comparing the
estimated amount of the claim reserves to appropriate
documentation, such as reports from the surveyors.

Moreover, | performed detailed testings of claims case

estimates and settlements.

These included the

procedures below.

Tested significant claim expenses in profit and
loss (including claims settled, claims reserved,
claims handling fee reserved and claims handling
fee settled) and checked these against the
surveyor report.

Tested reconciliations between the claims data
recorded in the claim module in the core insurance
system and the data used in the actuarial
reserving calculations as at the reporting date to
ensure accuracy and completeness of data.
Evaluated whether the Company’s actuarial
methodologies were consistent with those used in
the industry and prior year. Obtained an
understanding of the assumptions involved when
determining the valuation of insurance liabilities. |
evaluated the reasonableness of management’s
significant assumptions by comparing weighted
average ultimate loss ratios in the past with the
expected loss ratio used by the Company’s actuary
and investigated any significant differences. | also
tested the calculation of the loss development
factor based on the Company’s historical claim
data.

Evaluated the competence, capabilites and
objectivity of the actuary, who is management’s
expert.

Annual Report 2019
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

+ Engaged my actuarial specialists to carry out
independent modelling to assess if the Company’s
best estimate of gross and net claims reserves fell into
my estimated reasonable ranges for selected types of
insurance. My actuarial specialists’ estimates of
outstanding claims reserves are based on a
statistical model of the claims process.

Based on all of the above procedures, | concluded
the key management assumptions are reasonable
and the valuation of insurance contract liabilities
are reliable.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’'s report
thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to me after the date of this auditor's report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When | read the annual report, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, | am required
to communicate the matter to the audit committee.

12  Financial Statement Report Annual Report 2019
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with TFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with TSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

14  Financial Statement Report Annual Report 2019
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
| identify during my audit.

| also provide the audit committee with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, | determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. | describe these matters in my auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should
not be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.

\%& oow’ﬂ,,,fy-#f""“’:
N

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4298
Bangkok
25 February 2020
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Premium receivables, net
Accrued investment income
Reinsurance assets, net
Amount due from reinsurance, net
Invested assets
Investments in securities, net
Investment properties, net
Property, plant and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Deferred tax assets
Prepaid reinsurance premiums, net
Prepaid commissions

Other assets

Total assets

Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

DHIPAYA INSURANCE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

2019 2018

Notes Baht Baht
6, 29 1,828,362,133  2,361,026,220
7,29 4,063,192,209  3,022,965,840
29 41,169,501 48,688,814
8 12,597,338,806 14,298,713,496

9,29 2,977,902,392

10,29, 37 13,833,617,107

11,37 158,090,061
12 1,494,475,608
13 61,436,162
16 857,599,098

1,231,292,815
1,176,074,367
579,763,563

2,847,190,776

15,181,450,060
161,959,853

1,326,400,593
67,931,778
756,119,055
2,690,316,734
1,655,827,059
542,275,866

40,900,313,822

44,960,866,144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

DHIPAYA INSURANCE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONT.)

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018
Notes Baht Baht
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 14 17,701,424,091 18,943,457,024
Due to reinsurers 15 5,237,290,632 5,401,579,899
Accrued commission expenses 29 671,562,793 683,498,961
Premium received in advance 7,239,868,720 9,714,197,849
Premium suspense accounts 55,287,300 38,312,284
Income tax payables 144,469,269 188,386,290
Employee benefit obligations 18 416,591,857 316,265,277
Other liabilities 19, 29 1,076,262,697 2,002,370,052

Total liabilities

32,542,757,359

37,288,067,636

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

DHIPAYA INSURANCE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONT.)

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018
Notes Baht Baht
Liabilities and equity (Cont'd)
Equity
Share capital
Authorised share capital
Ordinary shares, 600,000,000 shares
of par Baht 1 each (2018: 600,000,000 shares) 21 600,000,000 600,000,000
Issued and paid-up share capital
Ordinary shares, 600,000,000 shares
paid-up Baht 1 each (2018: 600,000,000 shares) 21 600,000,000 600,000,000
Premium on share capital 21 904,000,058 904,000,058
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Legal reserve 22 60,000,000 60,000,000
General reserve 22 858,637,842 782,079,741
Unappropriated 6,854,315,824 5,937,680,508
Other components of equity (919,397,261) (610,961,799)
Total equity 8,357,556,463 7,672,798,508
Total liabilities and equity 40,900,313,822 44,960,866,144

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

DHIPAYA INSURANCE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Revenues
Premium written

Less Ceded premium

Net premium written
Less Increase (decrease) in unearned premium

reserves from previous year

Net premium earned

Fee and commission income

Income on investments, net

Gains on investments

Gains (losses) on the revaluation of investments
Other income

Total revenues

Expenses
Gross insurance claims and loss adjustment
expenses
Less Insurance claims and loss adjustment
expenses recovery
Commission and brokerage expenses
Other underwriting expenses

Operating expenses

Total expenses

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

2019

Notes Baht

2018
Baht

29 21,846,249,486
(15,315,357,009)

20,521,828,882
(15,975,989,932)

6,530,892,477

(911,239,141)

4,545,838,950

(12,351,297)

5,619,653,336
3,827,492,505

29 724,860,447
29 281,978,069
29 92,103,531

4,533,487,653
3,879,142,674
667,108,743
203,193,301
243
101,911,257

10,546,087,888

9,384,843,871

8,688,192,672

(5,783,991,359)

29 2,225,877,077
1,298,119,346
24 1,879,251,040

8,981,882,534

(6,881,105,493)
2,326,588,225
1,202,120,269
1,897,206,541

8,307,448,776

7,526,692,076

2,238,639,112
27 (375,445,840)

1,858,151,795
(326,989,776)

1,863,193,272

1,531,162,019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

DHIPAYA INSURANCE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONT.)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018
Notes Baht Baht
Other comprehensive incomes (expenses)
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Unrealised actuarial losses - (12,724,406)
Income tax on items that will
not be reclassified 16 - 2,544,881
Total items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss - (10,179,525)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Unrealised losses on changes in fair value of
available for sale investments 20 (532,171,242) (586,706,844)
Realised (gains) losses from sale of available for sale
investments transferred to profit or loss 20 146,626,915 (113,055,202)
Income tax relating to items that will be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 16 77,108,865 139,952,409
Total items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (308,435,462) (559,809,637)
Other comprehensive incomes (expenses)
for the year, net of income tax (308,435,462) (569,989,162)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,554,757,810 961,172,857
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (Baht) 28 3.1 2.55

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

DHIPAYA INSURANCE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Net direct premium written
Cash received (paid) for reinsurance
Losses incurred of direct insurance
Loss adjustment expenses of direct insurance
Commissions and brokerages of direct insurance
Other underwriting expenses
Interest income
Dividend received
Other income
Operating expenses
Income tax paid
Cash received from investments in securities
Cash received from deposits at financial institutions
Cash used in investments in securities
Cash used in deposits at financial institutions
Others

Net cash provided from operating activities

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities

Cash provided from

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Cash provided from investing activities
Cash used in
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities

2019
Baht

2018
Baht

18,158,730,690
(2,734,181,021)
(10,356,526,204)
(394,425,486)
(1,690,412,038)
(1,056,418,773)
225,783,361
527,380,109
96,777,926
(2,062,617,772)
(444,869,508)
22,059,358,898
701,170,321
(22,246,721,796)
(401,100,000)

16,724,091,881
(1,898,325,950)
(9,685,925,369)
(355,525,027)
(1,577,794,686)
(991,179,184)
227,522,038
442,662,279
112,581,188
(1,793,836,517)
(343,739,125)
18,973,815,181
2,000,289,564
(20,380,630,481)
(506,290,321)

221,143,358 (47,065,819)
603,072,065 900,649,652
1,562,430 2,652,794
1,562,430 2,652,794

(230,454,895)
(16,642,278)

(101,716,300)
(31,376,378)

(247,097,173)

(133,092,678)

(245,534,743)

(130,439,884)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

DHIPAYA INSURANCE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT.)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018
Note Baht Baht
Cash flows used in financing activities
Repayment under finance lease agreements (20,201,554) (19,983,297)
Dividend paid 23 (869,999,855) (840,000,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (890,201,409) (859,983,297)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (532,664,087) (89,773,529)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 2,361,026,220 2,450,799,749
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 1,828,362,133 2,361,026,220
Significant non-cash transactions comprised of:
Accounts payable - purchase of property, plant and equipment 66,915,400 13,813,181
Purchase of equipment under finance lease agreements 20,201,554 12,764,000
Accounts payable - purchase of intangible assets 2,176,302 7,174 957
Reclassify investments in securities with maturity
not over 3 months from acquisition date 229,992,743 499,971,337

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

DHIPAYA INSURANCE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

1. General information

Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company which
listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Thailand.
The address of the Company’s registered office is as follows:

The Company’s registered address is 1115 Rama Il Road, Chong Nonsri, Yannawa, Bangkok.
The principal business operation of the Company is to provide non-life insurance business.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 February
2020.

2, Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below:

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards (“TFRS”) and the financial reporting requirements issued under the Securities and
Exchange Act. The financial statements are also based on the formats prescribed by the
Notification of the Office of Insurance Commission entitled “Principle, methodology, condition
and timing of preparation, submission and reporting of financial statements and operation
performance for non-life insurance company 2016 dated on 4 March 2016 (‘OIC
Notification’).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as
disclosed in the accounting policies.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

An English version of the financial statements has been prepared from the financial
statements that is in the Thai language. In the event of a conflict or a difference in
interpretation between the two languages, the Thai language financial statements shall
prevail.

36 Financial Statement Report Annual Report 2019



UsuN AwaUs:AUNg 910 (UKBU)

USEn Awaus:nung 911A (UKIBU)

KU18InAUS=NOUIUNISIIU

dnsullauansun 31 SusAu 2561
1. Zdayanalyl

USHN AwpUsenuns 310a @r1TK) (USEN?) WuusEnumsuiine wasiduuSensanzsifouly

o A 4 o X ad . Y a o &
@a’]@]%aﬂﬂjWﬂLLﬂdﬂiZL'ﬂﬂ‘lﬂﬂ sﬁd%@@]ﬂmuluﬂizla'ﬂﬂvlﬂﬂLLazu'ﬂa%@nN'ﬂ‘l@"ﬂ@l'ﬂzLuUu:@l\'iu

é’nﬁﬂmu@%agmmﬁ 1115 DUUNIETIA 3 UDNTOIUUNT LUALNUUI NTANWAMIUAT
mMIdsznauTNananueILium As mysuliwlmansy
aumsﬁuvl,@ﬁurmagwﬁmﬂﬂmmiumin‘%ﬁ'ﬂ \lodud 25 NUMWUS W.A. 2563

2. wlasungmsiind
wWannsmatyifsapddslumssarmoumaiudaaeluil
21 INWHNIIIATNIUNTRN

cmn’mﬁu"l,@ﬁ’ﬂﬁ'lﬁum'mmmgmmﬁ'\smwmamilﬁwaavlﬂmm:if@ﬁmu@mﬂl@TWi:Wﬁﬂ“iyrja
wannswduazamananning sumaiuldsardulimeansonulszmeadinnue senssums
MAbuazdLEIuNIUIzNaUTINatEAuny 309 wanunmat 35m3 Weuly wazszazmluns
SATUazHUILNITN ez BNWAEIAURAN IR N WD BILS BN AW WAsY w.e. 2559

N9IUN 4 Fwnau w.e. 2559 (“dsznia adn.”)

a v o &/ d a a 1 a v
\‘]‘JJﬂ"]iL\‘JuvL@]ﬁ]@W]T‘IJ‘H,I@’IEII“ELﬂm‘VTT]ﬂ’Wl%L@NI%ﬂ’]‘TJ@]Haﬂ’]“ﬂa\‘lﬁ\‘i@?ﬂﬁzﬂﬂu“ﬂﬂ\‘l\‘mﬂ’]ﬂd% NI

A a o A
aunatueluulounemsind

mysasumIlulireandasnunannsiyiniusasmi i) ludszmelng druualdldiseam
mimaigdndaguazmiligasdiiasasuimamunszoiunslumsihulomsnstydves
uiEnlufiad Jud vismiawneiTaansligasAfianasduinis wienanmaniianududau uaz

NunafsnuTesunAuLsslzanun i dtodiaydasumaduluninomedsznassuniaiu

Ta7 3
a ) o o o X a A Ada
\‘]UﬂqiL\juﬂUUﬂqﬂ"]aﬂﬂf]Eﬁ]@]ﬂ'\muﬂ’]ﬂﬂuﬂ'}imu@]’]“ﬂg“u’]ﬂ'ﬂLfluﬂ’]jﬂ”]vl,ﬂU Iuﬂimﬂw

aanutaudsnuniaimatnnulusssmesuandrsnulildsumaiuanungwingadunm ing

Wunan

$1891UUs:91U 2562 s1gunwnsiu. 37



Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2, Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.2 New and amended financial reporting standards that are relevant

2.2.1 New and revised financial reporting standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 which have significant changes and are
relevant to the Company

TFRS 4 (revised 2018) Insurance Contracts

TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
TAS 40 (revised 2018) Investment Property

TFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration

TFRS 4 has been amended to provide insurance companies an optional temporary
exemption from compliance with TFRS 9 and TFRS 7. Entities who choose to use
the exemption must follow the ‘financial instruments and disclosure for insurance
companies’ accounting guidelines issued by the Federation of Accounting
Professions until TFRS 17 becomes effective.

On 1 January 2020, the Company passes criteria of temporarily exemption from
TFRS 9 Financial Instruments and TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
under TFRS 4 (revised 2018) Insurance Contracts and is eligible to apply the
financial instruments and disclosure for insurance companies’ accounting
guidance’ (‘The Accounting Guidance’) as the Company has not previously applied
TFRS 9 Financial Instrument and the Company’s activities are predominantly
connected with insurance business. Insurance liabilities under TFRS 4 (revised
2018) Insurance Contracts as at 1 January 2018 is greater than 90% of total
company’s liabilities. The Company choose to apply the Accounting Guidance.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2 New and amended financial reporting standards that are relevant (Cont'd)
2.2.1 New and revised financial reporting standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 which have significant changes and are
relevant to the Company (Cont’d)

From the preliminary assessment, the management expects that the Company will
be affected on the following areas.

Classification and measurement

Classification and measurement of investments in equity instruments, currently
classified as general investments and presented at cost less impairment, will be
reclassified to available-for-sale investments and remeasured to fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy disclosed in Note 2.12 and reclassified with
a corresponding adjustment as of 1 January 2020.

Impairment

The impairment requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s expected
credit losses on its investment in debt securities classified as held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale investments. The expected credit loss model is
forward-looking and eliminates the need for a trigger event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised. The entity always accounts for expected credit losses
which involves a three-stage expected credit loss impairment model. The stage
dictates how the entity measures impairment losses and applies the effective
interest rate method. In which, the three-stage expected credit loss impairment will
be as the following stages:

- Stage 1 - from initial recognition of a financial assets to the date on which the
credit risk of the asset has not increased significantly relative to its initial
recognition, a loss allowance is recognised equal to the credit losses expected
to result from defaults occurring over the next 12 months.

- Stage 2 - following a significant increase in credit risk relative to the initial
recognition of the financial assets, a loss allowance is recognised equal to the
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the asset.

- Stage 3 - When a financial asset is considered to be credit-impaired, a loss
allowance equal to full lifetime expected credit losses is to be recognised.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2 New and amended financial reporting standards that are relevant (Cont'd)

2.2.1 New and revised financial reporting standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 which have significant changes and are
relevant to the Company (Cont’d)

As a consequence, the method of impairment loss calculation will be changed from
an incurred loss basis to the expected credit loss impairment calculated by
Company’s model with taking effect of forward-looking adjustment. The expected
credit loss will be recognised in profit or loss.

Transitional impact

On 1 January 2020, the Company will apply the ‘financial instruments and
disclosure for insurance companies’ accounting guidance’. The transition
adjustment will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings. From the preliminary assessment, management expect that the material
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings will affect on the following
items:

- Change in balance of general investment which its subsequent measurement
will change from at cost less impairment to at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

- Change in method of impairment loss calculation of held-to-maturity
investments in debt instruments and available-for-sale investments in debt
instruments under the Accounting Guidance.

The Company’s management is currently assessing the quantitative impact of the
first-time adoption of the Accounting Guidance.

TFRS 15 provides principle and approach of revenue recognition under five-step
process. The underlying principle is that the Company will recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of goods or services to customers at an amount that the entity
expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. It replaces the
principles of transferring the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
or services to the buyer in accordance with TAS 11, Construction contracts, TAS
18, Revenue and related interpretations.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2 New and amended financial reporting standards that are relevant (Cont'd)

2.2.1 New and revised financial reporting standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 which have significant changes and are
relevant to the Company (Cont’d)

TAS 40 clarifies that transfers to or from investment property can only be made if
there has been a change in use that is supported by evidence. A change in use
occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property. A change in intention alone is not sufficient to support a transfer.

TFRIC 2 2 clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income
when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The Company has already adopted above revised standards for the current

reporting period. The management assessed that the above revised standards do
not have significant impact to the Company.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2, Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2 New and amended financial reporting standards that are relevant (Cont'd)

2.2.2 New and amended financial reporting standards that are effective for accounting
period beginning or after 1 January 2020

Certain new and amended financial reporting standards have been issued that are
not mandatory for current period end 31 December 2019 reporting period and have
not been early adopted by the Company.

a) Financial instruments

The new financial reporting standards relate to financial instruments are:

TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments

TFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

TFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

These new standards address the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, impairment of financial
assets, hedge accounting, and presentation and disclosure of financial
instruments.

The Company’s management is currently assessing the impacts from these
standards.

46  Financial Statement Report Annual Report 2019



UsuN AwaUs:AUNg 910 (UKBU)

2. wlaungmsiid (de)

22 aasgunIngunInsiuaiyinsuazaiududseniiaada (de)

o o

222 asunImenuniemsdsadulnduazadudiudpeninatsdulddsniusey

320z Y FLURIaNaITUN 1 UNTIAN W.4. 2563

a o a a ) , o ) A o
visnlsmfiunansznuzasnasummenunimaduatulnduazaivylfudye 98
lidnagaaulslusanszoziiantiyTaugaiu 31 Sunan w.a. 2562 Al

lﬂl =~ a
n) LAIDINDNIINIILIW

' % o

V183U INLUNIIMITulniiineITesnuinIasiionmemandu leun

WIAIIUNILYT aliuf 32 1309 MIUFAIINLNITLAT8IT
NNNIIIN

UIATFIUNITILIUNINTIN aliuf 7 309 mnﬂmwﬂﬁagam%mﬁa
NNNIILIN

WIATFIUNITIILIUNINIILTY atiufl 9 304 10309anmendu

NIAAMVNIATTIUNINLINUNNINMTIN 1389 NITBINUANNREIVDI
a1un 16 L'Sumnquﬂwmmm@haﬂszmﬂ
MIAANVNINITIUMITNLNUNNMITR 1389 MITITnREUNIINIE UL

auuN 19 AN

mmgmm‘smm’mmam'ﬁmﬁmﬁ'uLﬂi"auﬁamam'ﬁuﬂajuf:ﬂainﬁumiﬁ]”@
UszlAnmems MYTayadILazNIAaNEMIFUNIW Smemaiuuasnitiunianis
3w M3das1rasFuNININ1IM I Matyddesiuanuldss mMIugaIManIs
LLa:miLﬂ@Lmﬂﬁagmﬁ's’sﬁ'um'%aaﬁawmﬂ’m'ﬁu

@

Auws ldUmliunanaznuuazas lussnimIseumMukanNIENUINANAIIUAINGE 1

2

$1891UUs:91U 2562 swunNwNsiu 47



Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2 New and amended financial reporting standards that are relevant (Cont'd)

2.2.2 New and amended financial reporting standards that are effective for accounting
period beginning or after 1 January 2020 (Cont’d)

Certain new and amended financial reporting standards have been issued that are
not mandatory for current period end 31 December 2019 reporting period and have
not been early adopted by the Company. (Cont'd)

b) TFRS 16 Leases

TFRS 16 will result in almost all leases where the Company is a lessee being
recognised on the statement of financial position as the distinction between
operating and finance lease is removed. An asset (the right to use the leased
item) and financial liability to pay rentals are recognised, with exception on
short-term and low-value leases.

On 1 January 2020, the Company will apply TFRS 16, Leases with modified
retrospective approach. From the preliminary impact assessment, the
management expect that the Company will be materially affected by this
Financial reporting standards from the recognition of assets, right-of-used and
lease liabilities under building rental lease agreement, which were previously
classified as ‘operating lease’ under TAS 17, Lease.

The Company will recognise following items upon adoption of TFRS 16

including;

- liabilities under lease agreements are recognised in accordance with the
obligations and discounting to present values with incremental borrowing
rates of the lessees and,;

- right-of-use assets are recognised equal to the present value of liabilities
under the lease agreements adjusted by any lease prepayments made at
or before the commencement date.

The Company’s management is currently assessing the quantitative impact of
the first-time adoption of TFRS 16, Lease.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2 New and amended financial reporting standards that are relevant (Cont'd)

2.2.2 New and amended financial reporting standards that are effective for accounting
period beginning or after 1 January 2020 (Cont’d)

Certain new and amended financial reporting standards have been issued that are
not mandatory for current period end 31 December 2019 reporting period and have
not been early adopted by the Company. (Cont'd)

c) Other new/amended standards

The new and amended financial reporting standards that relevant to the
Company are:

TAS 12 Income Tax
TAS 19 Employee Benefits
TFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendment to TAS 12, Income tax - clarified that the income tax
consequences of dividends of financial instruments classified as equity should
be recognised according to where the past transactions or events that
generated distributable profits were recognised.

Amendment to TAS 19, Employee benefits (plan amendment, curtaiiment or
settlement) - clarified accounting for defined benefit plan amendments, curtailments
and settlements that the updated assumptions on the date of change are applied to
determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting
period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.2 New and amended financial reporting standards that are relevant (Cont'd)

2.2.2 New and amended financial reporting standards that are effective for accounting
period beginning or after 1 January 2020 (Cont’d)

Certain new and amended financial reporting standards have been issued that are
not mandatory for current period end 31 December 2019 reporting period and have
not been early adopted by the Company. (Cont'd)

c) Other new/amended standards (Cont'd)

TFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments - explained how to
recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities
where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment. In particular, it discusses:

- that the Company should assume a tax authority will examine the uncertain
tax treatments and have full knowledge of all related information, ie that
detection risk should be ignored.

- that the Company should reflect the effect of the uncertainty in its income tax
accounting when it is not probable that the tax authorities will accept the
treatment.

- that the judgements and estimates made must be reassessed whenever
circumstances have changed or there is new information that affects the
judgements.

The Company’s management is currently assessing the impacts from these
standards.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.3 Revenue recognition
(a) Net premium earned

Premium written comprised of direct premium written and inward reinsurance premium,
less cancelled premium. Premium written is recognised on the date the insurance
policy comes into effective date for insurance policies of which the coverage periods
are less than 1 year. For long-term policies which the coverage periods are longer than
1 year, the related revenues is recorded as “Premium received in advance”. The
Company amortises the recognition of the unearned items as income over the
coverage period on the annual basis. Inward reinsurance premium is recognised as
income when the reinsurer places the reinsurance application or Statement of Accounts
with the Company.

Ceded premium is premium income which the Company ceded to reinsurer. For
long-term policies which the coverage periods are longer than 1 year, the Company
presented as “Prepaid reinsurance premium, net” by net presenting with related
prepaid commission income.

Net premium earned comprises of premium written after deducting ceded premium,
adjusted with unearned premium reserve adjustment.

(b) Fee and commission income

Fee and commission from ceded premium are recognised as income within the
accounting period when incurred.

Fee and commission from ceded premium with coverage periods longer than 1 year
are recorded as unearned items net presenting in “Prepaid reinsurance premium,
net” and recognised as income over the coverage period on the annual basis.

(c) Interest income and dividends
Interest income is recognised as interest accrues based on the effective rate

method. Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividend is
established.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.3 Revenue recognition (Cont'd)
(d) Gains (losses) on securities trading

Gains (losses) on trading in securities is recognised as incomes or expenses on the
transaction date.

(e) Otherincome

Other income is recognised on the accrual basis.

2.4 Premium reserve
(@) Unearned premium reserve

Unearned premium reserve is set aside in compliance with the Notification of the
Office of Insurance Commission governing the principle, methodology and condition
of unearned premium reserves, loss reserves and other reserves of non-life
insurance companies B.E.2554 as follows:-

Type of insurance Reserve calculation method
- Fire, marine (hull), and - Monthly average basis (the one-
miscellaneous (except for travel twenty fourth basis)
accident with coverage of less than
6 months)

- Marine and transportation, travel 100% of net premium written starting
accident (the coverage not more from the policy effective date
than 6 months)
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.4 Premium reserve (Cont'd)
(b) Unexpired risks reserve

Unexpired risks reserve is the reserve for the claims that may be incurred in respect
of in-force policies. Unexpired risks reserve is set aside using an actuarial method,
at the best estimate of the claims that are expected be incurred during the
remaining period of coverage, based on historical claims data.

The Company compares the amounts of unexpired risks reserve with unearned
premium reserve, and if unexpired risks reserve is higher than unearned premium
reserve, the difference is recognised as unexpired risks reserve in the financial
statements.

2.5 Loss reserve and outstanding claims

The Company records outstanding claims at the amount to be paid, while loss reserves are
provided upon receipt of claim advices from the insured. They are recorded at the value
appraised by an independent surveyors, or by the Company’s officer as each case but not
exceed the maximum of sum insured of each policy.

The Company sets up reserve for claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) which is
calculated as based on the best estimate by professional actuary, the provision will be
covered for all projected losses, such as losses incurred during this period, claims incurred
but not reported (IBNR) and net by loss paid.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2, Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.6 Product classification

The Company has classified the insurance and reinsurance contracts considering the
transfer of significant insurance risk by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a
specified uncertain future event, insured event, adversely affects the policyholder. None
of the insurance and reinsurance contracts contain embedded derivatives or are required
to be unbundled the components or classified as financial reinsurance contract. Such
contracts are accounted for as insurance contracts for the remainder of its lifetime until all
right and obligations of loss compensation to the policyholder are extinguished or expired.

The Company has classified all insurance contracts as short term insurance contracts
which mean the coverage period under the contract is not exceeding 1 year and no
certification of automatic renewal. The insurance contracts that cover dread disease and
the personal accident or health insurance contracts which the coverage period is
exceeding 1 year, the Company is able to terminate the contract, the insurance premium
can either be added or reduced, and any amendment of the benefit of the insurance
contract can be made throughout coverage period.

2.7 Liabilities Adequacy Testing

Liability adequacy tests of insurance contract liabilities recognised in the financial
statement are performed at the end of reporting period, using the best estimate of
ultimate loss, best estimate of future contractual liabilities of the in-forced insurance
contracts, also including claims handling expense, policy maintenance expense, and cost
of reinsurance. If that assessment shows that the carrying amount of its insurance
liabilities less related acquisition cost is inadequate in the light of the future estimates, the
entire deficiency shall be recognised in profit or loss.

2.8 Commissions, brokerages and other expenses
Commissions and brokerages are expensed within the accounting period when incurred.
For long-term policies which the coverage periods are longer than one year, the Company
amortises the recognition of the “Prepaid commissions” as expenses over the coverage

period on the annual basis.

Other expenses are recognised on the accrual basis.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.9 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call, short-term highly liquid investments with maturities of three months
or less from acquisition date.

2.10 Premium due and uncollected

Premium due and uncollected is carried at its net realisable value. The Company sets up
an allowance for doubtful accounts based on the estimated loss that may incurred in
collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection experiences and
analysis of debtor aging and current status of the premium due as at the Statement of
Financial Position date.

2.11 Reinsurance assets and due to reinsurers
(a) Reinsurance assets, net

Reinsurance assets are stated at the outstanding balance of insurance reserve
refundable from reinsurers.

Insurance reserve refundable from reinsurers is estimated based on the related
reinsurance contract of premium reserve, loss reserve and claims incurred but not yet
reported by insured accordance with the law regarding insurance reserve calculation.

The Company records allowance for doubtful accounts for the estimated losses that
may be incurred due to inability to make collection by considering financial status of
reinsurers as at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Amount due from reinsurance, net

Amount due from reinsurance are stated at the outstanding balance of claims and
various other items receivable from reinsurers, amounts deposit on reinsurance,
and reinsurance premium receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts.

The Company records allowance for doubtful accounts for the estimated losses that
may be incurred due to inability to make collection by considering long outstanding
balance more than two years and financial status of reinsurers as at the end of the
reporting period.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.11 Reinsurance assets and due to reinsurers (Cont'd)
(c) Due to reinsurers

Due to reinsurers are stated at the outstanding balance payable from reinsurance
and amounts withheld on reinsurance. Amounts due to reinsurers consist of
reinsurance premiums and other items payable to reinsurers, excluding claims. The
Company presents net of reinsurance to the same entity (reinsurance assets or
amounts due to reinsurers) when the criteria for offsetting as follows:

(1) The Company has a legal right to offset amounts presented in the Statement of
Financial Position, and

(2) The Company intends to receive or pay the net amount recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position, or to realise the asset at the same time as it
pays the liability.

2.12 Investments

Investments other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
initially recognised at fair value of consideration paid plus direct transaction cost.

Investments are classified into the following 4 categories: (1) trading investments; (2)
held-to-maturity investments; (3) available-for-sale investments; and (4) general
investments. The classification is dependent on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired. Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments
at the time of the purchase and re-evaluates such designation on a regular basis.

Tranding Available-for-sale investments

Trading investments and available-for-sale investments are subsequently measured at
fair value. The unrealised gains and losses of trading investments are recognised in profit
or loss. The unrealised gains and losses of available for sale investments are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are subsequently reclassified to profit or loss when
the investment is disposed.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less impairment.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2, Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.12 Investments (Cont'd)
General investments
General investments are carried at cost less impairment.
Disposal of investments
On a disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount (including cumulative changes in fair value recognised in equity) is
recognised to the profit or loss. When the Company disposes an investment partially, the
carrying amount of the disposed part is determined by the weighted average method.

2.13 Investment property

Investment properties, principally freehold office buildings, are held for long-term rental
yields or for capital appreciation or both and are not occupied by the Company.

Investment property is measured initially at cost, including directly attributable costs and
borrowing costs.

Subsequently, they are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is
replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other investment properties is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Building and improvements 20 years

66 Financial Statement Report Annual Report 2019



UsuN AwaUs:AUNg 910 (UKBU)

2. wlgungmsiid (de)

212 Quasnulunannsng (de)

LTuRInUNI 1y

L‘Eumnuﬁ'ﬂﬂ LEAIAD mwmnuﬁ”ﬂmlﬁamiﬁaym

113979 mm?um‘;gu

o o

lumsdwmisiduaimu Na@ms:mwwamauLmqu%ﬁiﬁ%’umnmﬁmﬂwﬁummmumym
°1JaaL‘EuamufmmﬁaNaazamja\mumiﬁﬂvlmazmmnm’mn’mﬂ?zlmml,ﬂmgamqﬁmwﬁ%’uf
srawllumuvaadiues sxtuiinsneglusumlsmanu nedidmiheIussmuiieliluan
mwﬁﬁam’m’mnwﬁﬁ@Lﬁmﬁ'uaaﬂvlﬂmm’m ﬁmmuﬁty%“naaﬁuamuﬁﬁimmmzﬁwm

wna o A . ¥ @
Tasls35 Daadeninnin
¥} a s ¢ A
2413 adInANINGLNaNI TR

Qs a Qs tﬂl a o 1 1A o b v [ Ié a w = v lﬂl
aFImnTunIwdiNaniaiuvasuiEnaulngfearadinauliio ssuiuniald tian
& o , A a X . a « & W v o
ﬂiﬂﬂ‘ﬁumnﬂle,@mLmlmw:mamamnmﬂwwumaagammaaaumwa wazbdlad I3l 5an
TagyuSsn

AFINIIUNTN ﬁLﬁamsamu{ujﬁ UNIILTNUINGN Eli’]ﬂ']“q% iwﬁdéfunulumsﬁ’]ﬂ HNIILRE

v e
@u‘quiunﬁgm

%é’umﬂmﬁujt,ﬁaﬁmmﬂ AFIWITUNTN 5Lﬁamiammzﬁuﬁﬂﬁa U’iﬁﬁmnuﬁﬂmlﬁamwm

LAY LLa:mLﬁawammumnmsﬁasm'w

a e 1 614 IS ' IA J C = a o & tﬂl = ) v
UIWNIININYN Ul%ﬂ"l wauﬂumu%uwawammumywadaumw ﬁnmamawmwmuvl,ﬂvl@

' 2 '

Aantsunnusenezlasudszlomiifoasugialusuinalusodronn Wadnmadfouunsy

3

A '

TuduyesafInITunIndinanIaimu visnizdayadautyivessungnilasuunuaan

Aduldfimainduzenna dufaunaasedInTINIHGINaMIaMUdn 9 wdwinanis

v A A ' @ o &
LRWAIN LWaﬂﬁuﬁ?uiqﬂ’]nu@]aa@ﬂiﬁu’]mﬂ’]ia’]ﬂqﬂ']il“ﬂjziﬂl’ﬁu@ﬂu

mmnmzdauﬁ%“uﬁga 20 1

$1891UUs:91U 2562 SuNWMsiu 67



Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.14 Property, plant and equipment

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
capitalised where there is future economic benefits. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss when incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as

follows:

Building and improvements 10 - 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5-20years
Motor vehicles 5-7 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised in profit or loss.
2.15 Intangible assets

Intangible asset is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment of assets
(if any).

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated by reference to their costs on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease and the expected beneficial period as follows:

Computer software 5-7 years
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2, Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.16 Leasehold rights

Leasehold rights stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation of leasehold
rights is calculated by reference to their costs on a straight-line basis over the lease
period of 30 years.

2.17 Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever there is an indication of impairment.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use.

Where the reasons for previously recognised impairments no longer exist, the impairment
losses on the assets concerned other than goodwill is reversed.

2.18 Leases
Leases - where a Company is the lessee

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

At the inception of finance lease, the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments is capitalised. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges to achieve a constant rate on the
liabilities balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations is presented net of
finance charges. Finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period.

70  Financial Statement Report Annual Report 2019



UsuN AwaUs:AUNg 910 (UKBU)

2. wlgungmsiid (de)

a

216 ANDNTIBINAK

%wﬁﬂ'mfﬁ']ﬁﬁuu,ammmwmnuﬁﬂ@hﬁmﬁmmﬂmau @héf@ﬁimumﬁwmmﬁnmmmu lasas

LRWATIANDT 8783 fndmaduizeziaan 30 T

217 NMINDUAIVBITWNING
u’%ﬁ'ﬂvl,ﬂ@“miwmﬂﬁm%'wsﬂ&iﬁéﬁmuﬁﬁmqmﬂﬁﬂiﬂwﬁﬁ"l&immvl,ﬁl,l,uuau UAITNAFBLNNT
aagendudszdmnd LLa:Lﬁaﬁm@4mirﬁﬁ%aamumxﬁﬁﬂa%ﬁwﬁm%’wﬁéﬁndnmfuﬁmié’aﬂm
FMSLAUNI WD u’%ﬁm:maaumiﬁawhijaﬁm@gmmi%%aamumirﬁ‘ﬁ'ﬁa%ﬁﬁﬁuﬂ{wﬁ
aanananalinIIRanen ﬁalmimmm"mmsﬁamha:%’ufl,ﬁagammuﬁrﬁmaa?mw%’wﬁgaﬂdw
Qamﬁm@rjwﬂﬁ%’uﬁu 1a ﬂga@hﬁmm’mﬂﬁ%’uﬁuﬂm ﬂﬁdﬁi’lmu‘ﬁ'gaﬂd’mijwa@hqﬁﬁim

%”ﬂﬁunu’l,umﬁmmmnga@hﬁ]’mmﬂ"ﬁ

Walngldizaihananilfifanisdesdluedaldnaaly v3snaznaunamImanuan
faafmnILEWNIWSaY 9 N hilsaanufion

218 &YIAITTEEED

o

1 ad A ¥ 1
WIBIITYSHT - NIWNUI ‘YlLﬁ%I}dLTj']

eEe

Hundasiumelddyginduiivnu @nianfnauunugslaf ldsuanng i) aziudinluils

(% o '

wigmanulasliifiduasinsaaanyuedy T

ms%’ujl,ﬁaL‘%'umeaaé{'@tgnﬁwmmm‘im:ﬁuﬁﬂﬁayga@huﬁﬁﬁm DIRUNTN ﬁ'ﬁ'rﬁm%aya@h
UJa9ugndy 293 INIUA Fass BTy T UED Lwigmhsl,mz@‘i’m'jw Frwnidufidasing
Finsezdugmenihmiawaceldinomimaduielildsanaendoaiideniauas Tag
RTanusnudadnyy) MazynWumuFyguseziuininandnlgiemmadu dldanon

miduaziufinlumiliwlemenuanananyuasdnyyii

$1891UUs:91U 2562 s1gdunwnsiu - 71



Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.18 Leases (Contd)
Leases - where the Company is the lessor

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease
payments is recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and
the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease
income is recognised over the term of the lease which reflects a constant periodic rate of
return. Initial direct costs are included in initial measurement of the finance lease
receivable and reduce the amount of income recognised over the lease term.

Rental income under operating leases (net of any incentives given to lessees) is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.19 Foreign currency translation
a) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Thai Baht, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

Any exchange component of gains and losses on a non-monetary item that recognised

in profit or loss, or other comprehensive income is recognised following the recognition
of a gain or loss on the non-monetary item.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.20 Employee benefits
(a) Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries, profit-sharing
and bonuses, and medical care that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period are recognised in respect of employees’ service up
to the end of the reporting period. They are measured at the amount expected to be
paid.

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Company pays contributions to a separate fund on a voluntary basis. The
Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

(c) Defined benefit plans

Amount of retirement benefits is defined by the agreed benefits the employees will
receive after the completion of employment. It usually depends on factors such as
age, years of service and an employee’s latest compensation at retirement.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market yield of
government bonds that matches the terms and currency of the expected cash
outflows.

Remeasurement gains and losses are recognised directly to other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. They are presented as a separate item in
statements of changes in equity.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(d) Other long-term benefits

The Company gives gold rewards to employees when they have worked for the
Company for 20, 25 and 30 years.

These obligations are measured similar to defined benefit plans except
remeasurement gains and losses that are charged to profit or loss.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.21 Current and deferred income taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising from differences
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, deferred income tax is not recognised for temporary differences arise
from:

- initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss is not
recognised

- investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Company and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax is measured using tax rates of the period in which temporary
difference is expected to be reversed, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has
a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

2. Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

2.23 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a
deduction in equity.

2.24 Dividend distribution
Dividend distributed to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability when
interim dividends are approved by the Board of Directors, and when the annual dividends
are approved by the shareholders.

2.25 Financial instruments
Significant financial instruments reflected in the Statement of Financial Position are
composed of cash and cash equivalents, premium receivables and investments securities
which the specific accounting policy for each item is separately disclosed in each related
caption.

2.26 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is

responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as Managing Director that makes strategic decisions.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

3. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

3.1 Impairment of premium receivable

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect impairment of
premium due and uncollected receivables. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based
on collection experience and a review of current status of the premium due as at the date
of Statement of Financial Position.

3.2 Impairment on amount due from reinsurance

The objective evidence of impairment estimation on amount due from reinsurance is
based on latest credit rating or solvency capital data available as at closing date and
other public information.

3.3 Buildings and equipment and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful lives and residual values for the buildings
and equipment and intangible assets. Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are different from previous estimates, or will write
off or write down technically obsolete assets that have been abandoned or sold.

3.4 Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
The Company considers future taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax
planning strategies in assessing whether to recognise deferred tax assets. The Company’s
assumptions regarding the future profitability and the anticipated timing of utilisation of
deductible temporary differences and significant changes in these assumptions from
period to period may have a material impact on the Company’s reported financial position
and results of operations.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

3. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments (Cont’'d)

3.5 Valuation of Insurance contract liabilities
Claim liabilities

Claim liabilities are provided upon receipt of claim advices from the insured for the
amount reported. They are recorded at the value appraised by an independent appraiser,
or by the Company’s officer as each case but not exceed the maximum of sum insured of
each policy.

Claims incurred but not yet reported by insured (“IBNR”)

The IBNR recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is estimated based on
various assumptions by using actuarial methods required by Office of Insurance
Commission.

The assumptions are regularly reviewed in the light of recent experience and current conditions.

The IBNR is estimated as the difference between estimated ultimate loss and reported
incurred loss. Reported incurred loss is the summation of paid claims, loss reserve, and
outstanding claims. The calculation was separately conducted for each product category
in the following list.

o Fire e Aviation

e Marine Hull e Engineering

e Marine Cargo e Health

e Motor Compulsory e Personal Liability

e Motor Voluntary e Industrial All Risks (IAR)
e Personal Accident e Crop

o Travel Accident e Others

There are 3 major methods to estimate the ultimate loss which are Incurred Chain
Ladder, Bornhuetter-Ferguson and Expected Loss Ratio. The most appropriate method
for each product category is selected based on actuarial judgement for both gross and
net of reinsurance basis.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

3. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments (Cont'd)

3.5 Valuation of Insurance contract liabilities (Cont'd)
Unallocated loss adjustment expense (“ULAE”)

Unallocated loss adjustment expense (ULAE), estimated from ratio between past ULAE
and past paid losses which is separately calculated between motor product categories
and non-motor product categories.

3.6 Unexpired risk reserve

Unexpired risks reserve has two components, the claims that may be incurred in respect
of in-force policies which is calculated based on ultimate loss ratio described in Note 3.5,
and other claim processing expenses detailed below.

e Past maintenance expense, estimated from ratio between estimated maintenance
expense and earned premium net of reinsurance.

e Unallocated loss adjustment expense (ULAE), estimated from ratio between past
ULAE and past paid losses which was separately calculated between motor
product categories and non-motor product categories.

e Cost of reinsurance, estimated based on current existing excess of loss reinsurance
contracts.

3.7 Employee benefits obligations

Employee benefits obligations are determined by independent actuary. The amount recognised
in the Statement of Financial Position is determined on an estimation basis utilising various
assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the cost for employee benefits include
discount rate, future salary increase rate, staff turnover rate, mortality rate, and inflation
rates. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the cost recorded for employee
benefits. On an annual basis, the Company reviews the appropriate assumptions, which
represents the provision expected to settle for the employee benefits.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

3. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments (Cont'd)

3.8 Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position that are not actively traded and for which quoted market prices are not
readily available, the management exercises judgement, using a variety of valuation
techniques and models. The input to these models is taken from observable markets, and
includes consideration of credit risk, liquidity, correlation and longer-term volatility of financial
instruments. Change in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value
recognised in the financial statements and disclosures of fair value hierarchy.

4, Insurance risk

There are three major risk sub-categories in insurance risk which are underwriting risk, reinsurance
risk and concentration of risk.

41 Underwriting risk

Underwriting risk is the risk that actual claims loss and related expenses deviate from
underlying estimation assumptions which may cause insufficient Company’s premium
reserves and loss reserves. Underwriting risk management guideline was developed in order
to manage the risks including underwriting standards and underwriting guidelines.
Underwriting standards and underwriting guidelines were developed to ensure that premium
charged is matched with coverage of risks. Underwriting principles were individually
developed for each group of risk including house, commercial building, hotel and industrial
facilities. The principles also limit insurance proportion for each risk group to control
concentration of risks.  Additionally, insurance claims monitoring process has been
continuously conducted which consists of IBNR calculation and premium reserve adequacy
testing to ensure that holding reserves will be sufficient for actual claim losses.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

4. Insurance Risk (Cont'd)

4.2 Reinsurance risk

Reinsurance risk is the risk that in-force reinsurance contracts are inadequate for risk transfer
according to the Company’s risk appetite level, and also the risk that reinsurers cannot fulfil
their obligation according to reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance risk management guideline is
developed in order to manage the risks including reinsurance guidelines and reinsurance plan
selection. There are four types of reinsurance contracts which are facultative, proportional
treaty, non-proportional treaty, and catastrophe reinsurance. Overall risk monitoring has been
conducted in order to ensure that retained risks are according to risk management policy. In
addition, reinsurer selection principles are developed for both domestic and foreign reinsurers
to ensure that they will be able to fulfil their obligations.

4.3 Concentration of risks

Concentration of risks will increase the possibility of load of claims to incur at the same time
and may result in actual claim losses deviate from expectation. Concentration risk
monitoring and control has been conducted including insurance of various categories of
products, insurance block control, geographic control and high risk area (natural disaster i.e.
flood and earthquake) to limit risk exposure. The Company uses information technology
system to collect data and prevent concentration of risk. Additionally, concentration of risk
management also apply on reinsurance port in order to avoid too much reinsurance
proportion to any single reinsurer. Concentration risk can be effectively managed by
product diversification because the claims will not concentrate within any categories of
products.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

4. Insurance Risk (Cont'd)

4.3 Concentration of Risk (Cont'd)

The Company has written premium divided into categories of products in gross of
reinsurance basis as follows:

Categories of products

Fire

Marine and transportation

Motor

Personal accident

Miscellaneous

Total

2019
Baht

2018
Baht

1,792,512,085

422,614,635
4,138,894,842
7,734,796,579
7,757,431,345

1,977,350,253

300,273,304
2,914,337,415
8,088,304,550
7,241,563,360

21,846,249,486

20,521,828,882

The Company has written premium divided into categories of products in net of reinsurance

basis as follows:

Categories of products

Fire

Marine and transportation

Motor

Personal accident

Miscellaneous

Total

2019 2018

Baht Baht
1,180,880,889 1,126,332,537
44 107,755 63,804,334

2,040,498,695
2,383,557,169
881,847,969

1,365,270,117
1,232,829,648
757,602,314

6,530,892,477

4,545,838,950

5. Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, to maintain solvency capital as required by the Office of Insurance Commission,
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders and/or issue new shares.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

6. Cash and cash equivalents

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Cash on hand 1,435,529 1,353,736

Bank deposits held at call 1,316,532,493

Bank deposits with fixed maturity and

certificate of deposits 2,018,050,000
Investment in securities with maturity not over
3 months from acquisition date 510,394,111

1,859,701,147
2,318,120,321

499,971,337

Total cash and deposits at financial institutions 3,846,412,133

4,679,146,541

Less Deposits at banks and other institutions with
maturity over 3 months from acquisition
date (Note 10)

Restricted deposit at banks

(1,963,500,000)
(54,550,000)

1,828,362,133

(2,263,370,321)
(54,750,000)

Cash and cash equivalents 2,361,026,220

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had pledged fixed deposits totaling Baht 54.55 million
(2018: Baht 54.75 million) as collaterals against bank overdrafts and as bail bond in cases
where insured drivers have been charged with criminal offence, and placed with the Registrar, in
accordance with Section 19 of the Insurance Act B.E. 2535 (as stated in Notes 30 and 34).
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

7. Premium receivables, net

The Company has balances of premium receivables which classified by aging from the due
date of the premium collection as follows:

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Undue 3,084,293,545 2,393,114,526
Overdue
Less than 30 days 353,007,228 209,327,562
31 - 60 days 277,635,054 135,919,267
61 - 90 days 163,345,357 92,847,405
91 days - 1 year 187,345,158 194,534,754
More than 1 year 91,563,345 77,545,955
Total premium receivables 4,157,189,687 3,103,289,469
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (93,997,478) (80,323,629)
Premium receivables, net 4,063,192,209 3,022,965,840

For premiums due from agents and brokers, the Company has established collection guidelines
in accordance with the regulatory requirement for premium collection. For overdue premium
receivables, the Company is pursuing legal proceedings against such agents and brokers case
by case.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

8. Reinsurance assets, net

The Company has assets from reinsurance as follows:

Insurance reserve to be called from
reinsurance companies
Loss reserve
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Premium reserve
- Unearned premium reserve (UPR)

- Unexpired risk reserve (URR)

Reinsurance assets, net

8.1 Loss reserve to be called from reinsurance companies

Beginning balance for the year
Claims and loss adjustment recovery
and incurred during the year
Change in claim reserve of claim recovery
and incurred in previous year
Change in claim reserve recovery from
change in assumptions during the year
Claims and loss adjustment
recovery settled during the year

Closing balance for the year

2019 2018

Baht Baht
4,073,298,342 5,909,063,148
(22,840,015) (22,840,015)
8,546,880,479 8,412,490,363
12,597,338,806 14,298,713,496
2019 2018

Baht Baht
5,909,063,148 6,579,554,205

7,427,916,026  8,101,467,313
(948,945,832)  (418,703,514)
(35,794,587)  (241,625,791)
(8,278,940,413)  (8,111,629,065)
4,073,298342  5909,063,148

8.2 Unearned premium reserve to be called from reinsurance companies

2019 2018

Baht Baht

Beginning balance for the year 8,412,490,363 8,493,395,772
Ceded premium written for the year 15,315,357,009 15,975,989,932
Ceded premium earned in the year (15,180,966,893)  (16,056,895,341)
8,546,880,479 8,412,490,363

Closing balance for the year
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

98

9. Amount due from reinsurance, net

The Company has amount due from reinsurance as follows:

Amounts deposited on reinsurance
Due from reinsurers

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Amount due from reinsurance, net

2019 2018
Baht Baht
3,182 3,186
3,873,749,031 3,721,351,298
3,873,752,213 3,721,354,484
(895,849,821) (874,163,708)

2,977,902,392

2,847,190,776

Balances of due from reinsurers are classified by aging as follows:

Undue

Overdue
Less than 12 months
1-2years
More than 2 years

Total due from reinsurers

2019 2018

Baht Baht
27,544,808 35,479,790
2,055,142,000 1,863,338,903
790,173,239 955,440,286
1,000,888,984 867,092,319

3,873,749,031

3,721,351,298

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had not reversed the previous year allowance for
doubtful accounts (2018: nil) and recorded current year allowance for doubtful accounts for Baht
21.69 million (2018: Baht 353.30 million) according to the current status of amount due from
reinsurers as at the date of Statement of Financial Position. The amount recorded and reversed
have been included in ‘operating expenses’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial Statement Report
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

10.

Investment in securities, net

The Company has investment in securities as follows:

Held-for-trading investments
Equity securities

Total
Add Unrealised gains

Total Held-for-trading investments

Available-for-sale investments
Government and state enterprise securities
Private enterprise debt securities

Equity securities

Unit trusts

Total
Less Unrealised losses

Total available-for-sale investments

Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise securities
Deposit at banks (Note 6)

Government lottery savings

Total
Less Impairment charge

Total held-to maturity investments

General investments
Equity securities

Total
Less Impairment charge

Total general investments

Total Investment in securities, net

100 Financial Statement Report

2019
Cost/Amortised

cost Fair value  Percentage to
Baht Baht total assets
882,205,126 887,440,765 217
3,668,697,292  3,679,618,935 9.00
3,361,589,413 2,410,126,016 5.89
3,607,846,916  3,375,430,218 8.25
11,520,338,747 10,352,615,934 25.31
(1,167,722,813) - -
10,352,615,934 10,352,615,934 25.31
813,441,094 - 1.99
1,963,500,000 - 4.80
15,000,000 - 0.04
2,791,941,094 - 6.83
2,791,941,094 - 6.83
820,037,624 - 2.00
820,037,624 - 2.00
(130,977,545) - (0.32)
689,060,079 - 1.68

13,833,617,107

Annual Report 2019
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

10. Investment in securities, net (Cont'd)

The Company has investment in securities as follows: (Cont'd)

2018
Cost/Amortised

cost Fair value  Percentage to
Baht Baht total assets

Held-for-trading investments
Equity securities - 341 -
Total - - -
Add Unrealised gains 341 - -
Total Held-for-trading investments 341 341 -

Available-for-sale investments
Government and state enterprise securities
Private enterprise debt securities

Equity securities

Unit trusts

Total
Less Unrealised losses

Total available-for-sale investments

Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise securities
Deposit at banks (Note 6)

Government lottery savings

Total
Less Impairment charge

Total held-to maturity investments

General investments
Equity securities

Total
Less Impairment charge

Total general investments

Total Investment in securities, net

102 Financial Statement Report

1,721,539,992  1,732,502,378 3.85
4,022,284,986  4,040,017,153 8.99
3,110,947,759  2,330,670,152 5.18
3,310,941,854  3,280,369,733 7.30
12,165,714,591 11,383,559,416 25.32
(782,155,175) - ;
11,383,559,416 11,383,559,416 25.32
832,459,903 - 1.86
2,263,370,321 - 5.03
15,000,000 - 0.03
3,110,830,224 - 6.92
3,110,830,224 . 6.92
818,037,624 - 1.82
818,037,624 - 1.82
(130,977,545) - (0.29)
687,060,079 - 1.53

15,181,450,060

Annual Report 2019
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

10. Investment in securities, net (Cont'd)

The maturity of investment in debt securities is shown as follows:

2019
Period to maturity
Within Over
1 year 1-5years 5 years Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Available-for-sale investments
Government and state enterprise
securities 852,472,856 29,732,271 - 882,205,127
Private enterprise debt securities 794,708,100 2,523,906,371 350,082,821 3,668,697,292
Total 1,647,180,956 2,553,638,642 350,082,821 4,550,902,419
Add (Less) Unrealised gains (losses) 5,569,194 7,735,087 2,853,000 16,157,281
Total available-for-sale
investments 1,652,750,150 2,561,373,729 352,935,821 4,567,059,700
Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise
securities 292,491,501 508,070,674 12,878,919 813,441,094
Total held-to-maturity investments 292,491,501 508,070,674 12,878,919 813,441,094
Total investments in debt
securities, net 1,945,241,651 3,069,444,403 365,814,740 5,380,500,794
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

10. Investment in securities, net (Cont'd)

The maturity of investment in debt securities is shown as follows: (Cont'd)

2018
Period to maturity
Within Over
1 year 1-5years 5 years Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Available-for-sale investments
Government and state enterprise
securities 1,127,289,001 569,250,991 25,000,000 1,721,539,992
Private enterprise debt securities 333,308,282 3,688,976,704 - 4,022,284,986
Total 1,460,597,283 4,258,227,695 25,000,000 5,743,824,978
Add (Less) Unrealised gains (losses) 1,288,447 22,898,763 4,507,343 28,694,553
Total available-for-sale
investments 1,461,885,730 4,281,126,458 29,507,343 5,772,519,531
Held-to-maturity investments
Government and state enterprise
securities 123,873,384 695,726,391 12,860,128 832,459,903
Total held-to-maturity
investments 123,873,384 695,726,391 12,860,128 832,459,903
Total investments in debt
securities, net 1,5685,759,114 4,976,852,849 42,367,471 6,604,979,434

As at 31 December 2019, bonds and debentures of Baht 763.21 million (2018: Baht 796.94
million) and government lottery savings of Baht 10 million (2018: nil) were used as collateral against
premium reserve with the registrar, collateral for underwriting policies and collateral in case of the
insured driver is an alleged offender (as stated in Notes 31 and 34).

During the year 2019, the Company had revenues relating to investment as follows:

- Interest income and dividend income from available-for-sale investments of Baht 142.60 million
and Baht 365.88 million, respectively (2018: Baht 133.58 million and Baht 331.93 million,
respectively)

- Interest income from held-to-maturity investments of Baht 54.88 miillion, (2018: Baht 90.86 million)

- Dividend income from general investments of Baht 161.50 million (2018: Baht 110.73 million)

- Consideration received from selling available-for-sale investments of Baht 18,507.37 million
(2018: Baht 9,765.50 million) and gain from selling available-for-sale investments of Baht
281.47 million (2018: Baht 203.18 million)
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

11.

Investment property, net

As at 1 January 2018
Cost
Less Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Opening net book amount

Transferred in

Depreciation

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2018
Cost
Less Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Fair value (Note 37)

108 Financial Statement Report

Building and
Land improvements Total
Baht Baht Baht
107,966,383 100,496,802 208,463,185
- (86,490,225) (86,490,225)
107,966,383 14,006,577 121,972,960
107,966,383 14,006,577 121,972,960
41,525,532 - 41,525,532
- (1,538,639) (1,538,639)
149,491,915 12,467,938 161,959,853
149,491,915 100,496,802 249,988,717
- (88,028,864) (88,028,864)
149,491,915 12,467,938 161,959,853
444,580,851 52,633,710 497,214,561

Annual Report 2019
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149,491,915 12,467,938 161,959,853
444 580,851 52,633,710 497,214,561
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

1.

Investment property, net (Cont'd)

As at 1 January 2019
Cost
Less Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

For the year ended 31 December 2019
Opening net book amount

Transferred in/(out)

Depreciation

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2019
Cost
Less Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Fair value (Note 37)

Building and

Land improvements Total

Baht Baht Baht
149,491,915 100,496,802 249,988,717
- (88,028,864) (88,028,864)
149,491,915 12,467,938 161,959,853
149,491,915 12,467,938 161,959,853
(9,577,837) 7,691,734 (1,886,103)
- (1,983,689) (1,983,689)
139,914,078 18,175,983 158,090,061
139,914,078 127,214,722 267,128,800
- (109,038,739) (109,038,739)
139,914,078 18,175,983 158,090,061
416,096,883 64,009,122 480,106,005

For the year 2019, the Company’s investment properties were valued as at 21 November 2017 by
independent professionally qualified valuers (2018: as at 21 November 2017), who hold a
recognised relevant professional qualification and have recent experience in the locations and
segments of the investment properties valued. For all investment properties, their current use
equates to the highest and best use. Management have considered and believed that there is no

factor which will significantly affect the latest valuation amount of Baht 480.11 million.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

11. Investment property, net (Cont’d)

The methods used to determine the fair value of investment properties are as follows:

For land with building, land is determine using the market approach which are based on sales
prices of comparable property in close proximity and adjusted for differences in key attributes
such as size and shape, location and condition of investment property. Building and improvement
are determine using the replacement cost approach which estimates the cost to replace the
building and building improvements based on current construction cost, less depreciation based
on useful life determined by valuer. Such information is sufficient for comparison to determine the
fair values of investment property. The Company classified the fair value measurement as level 2
of fair value hierarchy (Note 37).

The fair value is based on valuations by independent valuers which will be revalued every three
years. However, management will review the fair value to reflect market conditions at the end of
the reporting period.

Amounts recognised in profit and loss that are related to investment property are as follows:

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Rental and service income 24,527,295 18,446,960
Direct operating expense arise from investment
property that generated rental and service income 6,289,784 4,677,009
Direct operating expense arise from investment
property that did not generated rental and service
Income 1,193,992 2,090,536
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

12.

13.

Property, plant and equipment, net (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had vehicles acquired under finance lease contract with a net
book value of Baht 39.24 million (2018: Baht 56.07 million).

Intangible assets, net

At 1 January 2018
Cost
Less Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

For the year ended

31 December 2018
Opening net book amount
Additions
Transfers in/(out)
Transfer of assets - other
Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2018
Cost
Less Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

118 Financial Statement Report

Computer

Computer Software under
software installation Total
Baht Baht Baht
253,299,961 3,468,960 256,768,921
(200,082,369) - (200,082,369)
53,217,592 3,468,960 56,686,552
53,217,592 3,468,960 56,686,552
6,323,722 23,353,000 29,676,722
5,330,200 (5,330,200) -
- (184,800) (184,800)
(18,246,696) - (18,246,696)
46,624,818 21,306,960 67,931,778
264,953,883 21,306,960 286,260,843
(218,329,065) - (218,329,065)
46,624,818 21,306,960 67,931,778

Annual Report 2019



UsuN AwaUs:AUNg 910 (UKBU)

12.  fian a1a1suazalnsalgns (de)

a

m‘fi'qw% 39.24

o

o A ) A o s v v o ' a 4 '
[3%3 ?uﬁ 31 TUNAN N.¢. 2562 inﬂﬁiﬂﬂuﬁ‘ﬁﬂﬂu’m’ml@ ﬁfyjy'u%']ﬂ']imusﬁ\jﬁﬂaﬂ’]@nu

SULIN (W.F. 2561 : 56.07 RI1WLIN)
13. auﬂ%'wsﬂaiﬁﬁ’mqu%

Tilsunaa

a 4
Tﬂiuﬂi&l ADANILADTI

ARARADY  SEMIeRANRs 54
U U Un

b ud 1 An31AN W6, 2561
MM 253,299,961 3,468,960 256,768,921
#N Aaasninu Rz (200,082,369) - (200,082,369)
Maneaiyd - ans 53,217,592 3,468,960 56,686,552
ﬁm%'uﬂguqﬂi'uﬁ 31 5WINAN N.A. 2561
ety Fdul - and 53,217,592 3,468,960 56,686,552
mMygeLiniu 6323722 23,353,000 29,676,722
Iaumﬁ/(aaﬂ) 5,330,200 (5,330,200) -
TouGunsng - au 9 - (184,800) (184,800)
ANAATIRUNE (18,246,696) - (18,246,696)
neneaiyianed - g 46,624,818 21,306,960 67,931,778
b i 31 SWwINAN W.6. 2561
MM 264,953,883 21,306,960 286,260,843
#n edadninazay (218,329,065) - (218,329,065)
ey - qni 46,624,818 21,306,960 67,931,778

$1891UUs:91U 2562 shgvunwMmsiiu. 119



Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

13.

Intangible assets, net (Cont'd)

At 1 January 2019
Cost
Less Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

For the year ended

31 December 2019
Opening net book amount
Additions
Transfers in/(out)
Transfer of assets - other
Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2019
Cost
Less Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

120 Financial Statement Report

Computer

Computer Software under
software installation Total
Baht Baht Baht
264,953,883 21,306,960 286,260,843
(218,329,065) - (218,329,065)
46,624,818 21,306,960 67,931,778
46,624,818 21,306,960 67,931,778
4,402,423 7,241,200 11,643,623
3,930,000 (3,930,000) -
(18,139,239) - (18,139,239)
36,818,002 24,618,160 61,436,162
273,286,306 24,618,160 297,904,466
(236,468,304) - (236,468,304)
36,818,002 24,618,160 61,436,162

Annual Report 2019
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

14. Insurance contract liabilities (Cont'd)

14.1 Claim liabilities

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Beginning balance for the year 7,807,267,115 9,036,921,356
Claims and loss adjustment expenses
incurred during the year 10,398,957,014  10,586,197,680
Change in claim reserve of claim
incurred in previous year (978,802,261) (522,886,562)
Change in claim reserve from change in
assumptions during the year (42,377,514) (397,086,724)
Claims and loss adjustment
expenses paid during the year (11,665,439,429) (10,895,878,635)
Closing balance for the year 5,519,604,925  7,807,267,115
14.2 Unearned premium reserve
2019 2018
Baht Baht
Beginning balance for the year 11,136,189,909 11,204,744,021
Premium written for the year 21,846,249,486 20,521,828,882
Premium earned in the year (20,800,620,229) (20,590,382,994)
C|Osing balance for the year 12,181,819,166 11,136,189,909

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had not provided for unexpired risk reserve for
the amount of Baht 6,099.22 million (2018: Baht 5,742.87 million) since unexpired risk
reserve was lower than unearned premium reserve.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

14. Insurance contract liabilities (Cont'd)

14.5 Maturity analysis of claim liabilities expected to be paid

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Claim liabilities expected to be
paid within 12 months 4,051,395,236 4,947,998,454
Claim liabilities expected to be paid
between 1 and 2 years 840,139,791 1,243,683,571
Claim liabilities expected to be paid
between 2 and 5 years 604,988,178 1,199,052,183
Claim liabilities expected to be paid
in more than 5 years 23,081,720 416,532,907
Total claim liabilities expected to be paid 5,519,604,925  7,807,267,115
14.6 Sensitivity Analysis
2019
Effect to
Claim liabilities
Effect to and unallocated
Change in key Reinsurance loss adjustment Effect to Effect to
assumption Assets expenses Profit or loss Owners’ Equity
Loss
Development
Factor (LDF) +10% 660,782,114 912,291,418 (251,509,304) (201,207,443)
-10% (797,856,900) (1,102,624,651) 304,767,751 243,814,201
Expected
Ultimate
Loss Ratio +10% 82,099,377 104,944,843 (22,845,466) (18,276,373)
-10% (82,099,374) (104,944,842) 22,845,468 18,276,374
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

14. Insurance contract liabilities (Cont'd)

14.6 Sensitivity Analysis (Cont'd)

2018
Effect to
Claim liabilities
Effect to and unallocated

Change in key Reinsurance loss adjustment Effect to Effect to
assumption Assets expenses Profit or loss Owners’ Equity
Loss
Development
Factor (LDF) +10% 579,401,259 776,267,652 (196,866,393) (157,493,114)
-10% (670,026,717) (905,302,979) 235,276,262 188,221,010
Expected
Ultimate
Loss Ratio +10% 85,654,385 108,305,917 (22,651,532) (18,121,226)
-10% (85,654,383) (108,305,915) 22,651,532 18,121,226

15. Due to reinsurers

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Outward premium payables 2,582,952,293 2,600,712,513
Amounts withheld on reinsurance treaties 2,654,338,339  2,800,867,386
Total due to reinsurers 5,237,290,632  5,401,579,899

132 Financial Statement Report Annual Report 2019



v
14.  whanandwydsznung (da)

UsuN AwaUs:AUNg 910 (UKBU)

a I3 1 a s ]
14.6 ms’aLﬂiwwﬂ's’maa%lﬁaﬂaafaamumwan ()]

N.¢. 2561

NANIENUAD
B8589
AFwlna

NAUNK

HANIZNUAD  UWATAIIANTS

Fwnsng  Fnlnanaunn WanIENy HaNIENY
mswlasuuilas N3 flsignansa aanls AadINVDY
Twdoannd  Usenunwca InaIsler 1109% W29
AATININAW
Aawlnaunaunui
1asusanuud + Ja88z 10 579,401,259 776,267,652 (196,866,393)  (157,493,114)
- o882 10 (670,026,717) (905,302,979) 235,276,262 188,221,010
aasEInaanlny
NAUNUFNY T
fenamyos + $owaz 10 85,654,385 108,305,917  (22,651,532)  (18,121,226)
- o882 10 (85,654,383) (108,305,915) 22,651,532 18,121,226
Y & ao o o 1
15. Laqﬁﬂﬂiﬂﬂﬂigﬂ%ﬂﬂﬂﬂ
N.¢l. 2562 N.F. 2561
U U

Weldsznunodaansang
a A U Qs % 1
[uda Manmsdsznunaee

FIUNRRUIENYTenun e

$1891UUs:91U 2562

2,582,952,293
2,654,338,339

2,600,712,513
2,800,867,386

5,237,290,632

5,401,579,899

s1gdunwnsiu. 133



Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

16. Deferred income tax

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
Deferred tax assets to be settled within 12 months
Deferred tax assets to be settled after 12 months

Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled within 12 months
Deferred tax liability to be settled after 12 months

Deferred tax asset, net

2019 2018

Baht Baht
311,216,008 195,926,485
546,383,090 560,192,638
857,599,098 756,119,123
(68)

- (68)
857,599,098 756,119,055

Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liabilities method using a

principal tax rate of 20% (2018: 20%).

The movement on the net deferred tax assets for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are

as follows:

Beginning balance as at 1 January

Change in net deferred tax per
Statement of Income

Change in deferred tax relating to unrealised gains
(losses) on investments in Statement of

Comprehensive Income

Closing balance as at 31 December

134 Financial Statement Report

2019 2018
Baht Baht
756,119,055 518,941,775
24,371,178 94,679,990
77,108,865 142,497,290
857,599,098 756,119,055
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

16. Deferred income tax (Cont'd)

The movement in deferred tax for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Balance as of Charges to other  Balance as of
1 January Charges to comprehensive 31 December
2019 Profit or loss Income 2019
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Deferred tax assets
Provision for losses incurred but
not yet reported (IBNR) 52,780,465 305,668 - 53,086,133
Allowance for doubtful accounts 98,289,127 8,410,542 - 106,699,669
Allowance for impairment of
Investments 26,207,509 - - 26,207,509
Loss reserves 144,838,588 (25,438,686) - 119,399,902
Employee benefit liabilities 60,708,174 20,065,316 - 80,773,490
Unrealised actuarial gains and losses 2,544,881 - - 2,544,881
Unrealised losses on the change in
value of available-for-sale securities 156,431,515 - 77,108,865 233,540,380
Unearned premium reserves 181,072,794 23,443,546 - 204,516,340
Depreciation of intangible assets 13,750,989 (793,023) - 12,957,966
Unallocated loss adjustment expense
reserve (ULAE) 19,495,081 (1,622,253) - 17,872,828
756,119,123 24,371,110 77,108,865 857,599,098
Deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised gain on the change in
value of trading securities (68) 68 - -
(68) 68 - -
Deferred tax assets, net 756,119,055 24,371,178 77,108,865 857,599,098
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16. Deferred income tax (Cont'd)

The movement in deferred tax for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

(Cont'd)
Balance as of Charges to other  Balance as of
1 January Charges to comprehensive 31 December
2018 Profit or loss Income 2018
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Deferred tax assets
Provision for losses incurred but
not yet reported (IBNR) 85,426,337 (32,645,872) - 52,780,465
Allowance for doubtful accounts 14,454,119 83,835,008 - 98,289,127
Allowance for impairment of
investments 26,207,509 - - 26,207,509
Loss reserves 162,817,917 (17,979,329) - 144,838,588
Employee benefit liabilities 56,057,218 4,650,956 - 60,708,174
Unrealised actuarial gains and losses - - 2,544,881 2,544,881
Unrealised losses on the change in
value of available-for-sale securities 16,479,106 - 139,952,409 156,431,515
Unearned premium reserves 125,191,106 55,881,688 - 181,072,794
Depreciation of intangible assets 14,367,088 (616,099) - 13,750,989
Unallocated loss adjustment expense
reserve (ULAE) 17,941,395 1,553,686 - 19,495,081
518,941,795 94,680,038 142,497,290 756,119,123
Deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised gain on the change in
value of trading securities (20) (48) - (68)
(20) (48) - (68)
Deferred tax assets, net 518,941,775 94,679,990 142,497,290 756,119,055
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

17. Finance lease liabilities

The Company has future minimum lease payments required under the finance lease
agreements were as follows:

2019 2018

Baht Baht

Not later than one year 12,367,300 19,909,564
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 6,322,784 16,991,286
18,690,084 36,900,850

Less Future finance charges on finance leases (586,158) (1,480,348)

Present value of finance lease liabilities 18,103,926 35,420,502

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Not later than one year 11,929,523 18,919,027
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 6,174,403 16,501,475
Present value of finance lease liabilities 18,103,926 35,420,502
18. Employee benefit obligations
2019 2018
Baht Baht
Statement of Financial Position:
Post-employment benefit 379,744,181 277,337,410
Other benefit 36,847,676 38,927,867
Statement of Comprehensive Income:
Post-employment benefit 121,419,457 32,977,905
Other benefit 3,749,672 4,782,418
Remeasurement for:
Post-employment benefit - 12,911,453
Other benefit - (187,047)
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18.

Employee benefit obligations (Cont'd)

The movement of employee benefit obligations over the year is as follows:

Beginning balance for the year
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost
Remeasurements :
Actuarial (gains) losses due to
experience adjustments
Actuarial (gains) losses - demographic
Assumptions
Actuarial (gains) losses — financial
Assumptions

Less Benefits paid

Closing balance for the year

Beginning balance for the year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Remeasurements :
Actuarial (gains) losses due to
experience adjustments
Actuarial (gains) losses - demographic
Assumptions
Actuarial (gains) losses - financial
Assumptions

Less Benefits paid

Closing balance for the year
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2019
Post-

employment Other
benefit benefit Total
Baht Baht Baht
277,337,410 38,927,867 316,265,277
30,291,636 2,933,247 33,224,883
81,857,543 - 81,857,543
9,270,278 816,425 10,086,703
(19,012,686) (5,829,863) (24,842,549)
379,744,181 36,847,676 416,591,857

2018
Post-

employment Other
benefit benefit Total
Baht Baht Baht
243,099,692 37,186,396 280,286,088
25,420,692 3,661,553 29,082,245
7,557,213 1,120,865 8,678,078
5,718,438 504,400 6,222,838
(97,849) (44,291) (142,140)
7,290,864 (647,156) 6,643,708
(11,651,640) (2,853,900) (14,505,540)
277,337,410 38,927,867 316,265,277
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

18. Employee benefit obligations (Cont'd)

On 5 April 2019, an amendment bill to the Labour Protection Law was published in the
Government Gazette. The amended law will become effective 30 days after its publication. The
main amendment is that the compensation for employees who have retired and have more than
or equal to 20 years of service has changed from 300 day’s pay to 400 day’s pay. The effects of
the amendment were recognised immediately as past service cost in profit or loss.

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate

Salary increase rate
Average turnover rate

Mortality rate

Retirement age
Gold prices

2019

2018

2.9% per year
7.0% per year
4.5% per year

2.9% per year
7.0% per year
4.5% per year

TMO 2017 with 3 % TMO 2017 with 3 %
improvement improvement

60 years 60 years

20,200 Baht 20,200 Baht

Gold Inflation rate 2.5% per year 2.5% per year
Sensitivity analysis on key assumption changes are as follows:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in
assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 2018 Baht Baht Baht Baht
Discount rate 1% 1% (37,672,760) (28,266,144) 44,060,570 33,006,368
Expected rate of
salary increase 1% 1% 42,917,435 28,578,054 (37,352,697) (25,031,271)
Turnover rate 20% 20% (13,567,453)  (9,002,098) 14,760,948 9,750,079
Mortality rate
improvement 1% 1% 1,108,035 740,500 (1,239,812) (824,665)
Gold prices 20% 20% 7,509,352 7,785,583 (7,509,323) (7,785,574)
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

18. Employee benefit obligations (Cont'd)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined
benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised within the

Statement of Financial Position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not

change compared to the previous period.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 16.8 years (2018: 16.8 years)

Maturity analysis of benefits expected to be paid
Benefits expected to be paid within 12 months
Benefits expected to be paid between 1 and 2 years
Benefits expected to be paid between 2 and 5 years
Benefits expected to be paid in more than 5 years

19. Other liabilities

Investment accounts payables
Subrogation payables
Suspenses

Other liabilities

Total other liabilities

2019 2018

Baht Baht
30,756,935 24,715,346
23,909,208 30,756,935
110,511,625 90,972,658

1,271,773,142

1,315,221,317

2019 2018

Baht Baht

- 1,231,870,616

3,312,779 5,994,162
304,482,055 137,349,165
768,467,863 627,156,109
1,076,262,697 2,002,370,052

Suspenses mainly consist of cash received from policy holders waiting to be identified and

matched with the source of payment.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

20. Unrealised gains (losses) on the revaluation of available for sale investments
Movement of unrealised gains (losses) on the revaluation of investments for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018
Baht Baht

Beginning balance as at 1 January
Changes in fair value of investments (Note 10)
Changes in deferred tax (Note 16)

(625,726,060)  (65,916,423)
(385,544,327) (699,762,046)
77,108,865 139,952,409

Closing balance as at 31 December (934,161,522) (625,726,060)

21. Share capital and premium on share capital

Number of Ordinary Preferred
shares shares Shares Total
Shares Baht Baht Baht
At 1 January 2018 300,000,000 300,000,000 904,000,058 1,204,000,058
Issue of shares 300,000,000 300,000,000 - 300,000,000
At 31 December 2018 600,000,000 600,000,000 904,000,058 1,504,000,058
Issue of shares - - - -
At 31 December 2019 600,000,000 600,000,000 904,000,058 1,504,000,058

The total number of authorised ordinary shares is 600,000,000 shares (2018: 600,000,000
shares) with a par value of Baht 1 per share (2018: Baht 1 per share). All issued shares are fully
paid.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

22. Statutory reserve and General reserve

Statutory reserve General reserve
2019 2018 2019 2018
Baht Baht Baht Baht
At 1 January 60,000,000 30,000,000 782,079,741 699,276,252
Appropriation during the year - 30,000,000 76,558,101 82,803,489
At 31 December 60,000,000 60,000,000 858,637,842 782,079,741

On 23 April 2019, the Company’s shareholders passed a resolution at the Annual General Meeting
to allocate its unappropriated retained earnings amounting to Baht 76.56 million to appropriated
general reserve for the Company’s business expansion consecutively (24 April 2018: Baht
82.80 million).

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required
to set aside a statutory reserve at least 5% of its net income until the reserve reaches 10% of
the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had sufficient statutory reserve of Baht 60 million (2018:
Baht 60 million).

23. Dividend paid

On 27 August 2019, the Board of Directors’ meeting no. 8 approved an interim dividend payment
of Baht 0.45 per share, totalling to the amount of Baht 270,000,000 from net profit for the interim
period ended 30 June 2019.

On 23 April 2019, the Annual General Meeting of shareholders approved a dividend payment of
Baht 1.00 per share, totalling to the amount of Baht 600,000,000, from net profit for the year
ended

31 December 2018.

On 28 August 2018, the Board of Directors’ meeting no. 8 approved an interim dividend payment
of Baht 0.40 per share, totalling to the amount of Baht 240,000,000 from net profit for the interim
period ended 30 June 2018.

On 24 April 2018, the Annual General Meeting of shareholders approved a cash dividend payment
of Baht 2.00 per share, equivalent to Baht 600,000,000, and 300,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at par value of Baht 1.00 to shareholders at the ratio of 1 existing share to 1 dividend
share, equivalent to Baht 300,000,000, totaling of dividend payment Baht 900,000,000, from net
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

24. Operating expenses

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Personal expenses which are not expenses
for underwritings and claims 863,642,471 686,607,071
Premises and equipment expenses which is not
expenses for underwriting and claims 364,621,894 333,565,430
Bad debts and doubtful accounts 38,793,407 393,088,682
Directors’ remuneration 28,842,000 28,454,000
Other operating expenses 583,351,268 455,491,358
Total operating expenses 1,879,251,040 1,897,206,541
25. Employee and company’s commitee expenses
2019 2018
Baht Baht
Salary and wages 970,596,407 895,153,697
Social security fund 9,859,632 9,685,162
Contribution to provident fund 51,569,096 46,238,742
Other benefits 175,597,425 88,941,379
Total employee and company’s commitee expenses 1,207,622,560 1,040,018,980

26. Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly registered a provident fund scheme under
Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The fund is contributed to by employees at the monthly rate of
5 percent, 10 percent and 15 percent of the employees’ basic salary, and the company at the
monthly rate of 5 percent and 10 percent based on the length of employment and will be paid to
the employees upon termination in accordance with the rules of the fund. The fund is managed
by Tisco Asset Management Company Limited. For the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018 the Company contributed to the Fund approximately Baht 51.57 million and Baht 46.24
million, respectively.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

27. Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Current tax:
Current tax on profits for the year 399,817,018 421,669,765
Deferred tax:
Temporary differences (24,371,178)  (94,679,989)
Total deferred tax (24,371,178)  (94,679,989)
Income taxes expense 375,445,840 326,989,776

The tax on the Company’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the Thai basic tax rate of the Company as follows:

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Profit before tax 2,238,639,112 1,858,151,795
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 20% 447,727,822 371,630,359
Tax effect of:
Additional eligible expenses and
expenses not deductible for tax purpose (72,281,982)  (44,640,583)
Income tax expense 375,445,840 326,989,776

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 17% (2018: 18%).

More information relating to deferred tax is presented in Note 16.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

28. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to shareholders
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period, after adjusting
the number of ordinary shares to reflect the impact of the stock dividend as discussed in Note
23 to the financial statements. The prior period’s basic earnings per share has been
recalculated as if the stock dividend had been distributed at the beginning of the earliest year
reported.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic earnings per share:

2019 2018

Net profit attributable to shareholders (Baht) 1,863,193,272 1,5631,162,019
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding (Shares) 600,000,000 600,000,000

Basic earnings per share (Baht) 3.1 2.55

There are no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

29. Related party transactions

Individuals and entities that directly or indirectly control or are controlled by or are under common
control with the Company, including investment entities, associates, joint venture and individuals
or entities having significant influence over the Company, key management personnel, including
directors and officers of the Company and close members of the family of these individuals and
entities associated with these individuals also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of
the relationship, and not merely the legal form.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

29. Related party transactions (Cont'd)

Related parties are as follows:

Company’s name Nature of relationship

PTT Public Company Limited 13.33 % of shares held in the Company and common director
Government Saving Bank 11.20 % of shares held in the Company and common director
Krung Thai Bank Public

Company Limited 10.00 % of shares held in the Company and common director
Dhipaya Life Assurance 17.76 % of shares held by the Company and

Public Company Limited common director
Dhipaya Insurance Co.,Ltd. 10.00 % of shares held by the Company and

(Lao PDR) common director
Community and Estate 10.00 % of shares held by the Company and

Management Co., Ltd. common director
Road Accident Victims Protection

Co., Ltd. 3.29 % of shares held by the Company and common director
Vejthani Public Company Limited 1.54 % of shares held by the Company and common director

During the year, the Company had significant business transactions with related parties. These
transactions have been conducted on commercial terms in the ordinary course of businesses.
Below is a summary of those transactions.

2019 2018
Baht Baht Pricing policies

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Premium written 772,195,156 733,814,892 Normal commercial terms for major
customers.
Commission and 405,442,157 518,006,553 Rate of commission terms for
brokerage expenses depending on types of insurance
that not over the rate under the
regulation.
Net investment income
Interest income 18,101,420 17,124,465 Interest rate 1.05%- 1.75%
per annum.
Dividend received 150,026,099 100,138,900 According to the payment
declaration.

Other income
Rental revenue 8,096,460 8,096,460 Contract price based on market rate.
Service revenue 8,800,500 8,800,500 Contract price based on market rate.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

29.

Related party transactions (Cont'd)

The Company has the following assets, which mainly arise from investments, and liabilities,

which are significant to related companies:

Statement of Financial Position
Investments in securities, net
Stocks

Dhipaya Life Assurance Public Company Limited

Dhipaya Insurance Co., Ltd. (Lao PDR)

Community and Estate Management Co., Ltd.

Road Accident Victims Protection Co., Ltd.
Vejthani Public Company Limited

Less Allowance for impairment

Total

Debentures
PTT Public Company Limited
Government Savings Bank

Total

Deposits at financial institutions
Government Savings Bank

Krung Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Total

Accrued investment income
Government Savings Bank

Krung Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Total

160 Financial Statement Report

2019 2018

Baht Baht
564,011,264 564,011,264
6,400,000 6,400,000
2,000,000 -
3,286,210 3,286,210
18,500,000 18,500,000
594,197,474 592,197,474
(8,326,400) (8,326,400)
585,871,074 583,871,074
29,751,484 29,507,343
61,402,375 -
91,153,859 29,507,343

1,026,566,764
472,368,872

1,014,386,674

435,541,389

1,498,935,636

1,449,928,063

8,567,123 7,349,936
359,544 359,544
8,926,667 7,709,480
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

29. Related party transactions (Cont'd)

The Company has the following assets, which mainly arise from investments, and liabilities,
which are significant to related companies: (Cont'd)

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Statement of Financial Position (Cont’d)
Premium receivables
PTT Public Company Limited 5,352,281 5,677,728
Government Savings Bank 9,304,859 13,853,210
Krung Thai Bank Public Company Limited 32,591,060 20,473,084
Dhipaya Life Assurance Public Company Limited - 163,828
Road Accident Victims Protection Co., Ltd 407,136 327,970
Vejthani Public Company Limited 6,247,458 654,961
Total 53,902,794 41,150,781
Amount due from reinsurance
Dhipaya Insurance Co., Ltd. (Lao PDR) 108,563,171 73,703,668
Total 108,563,171 73,703,668
Accrued commission expenses
Government Savings Bank 51,047,209 68,778,297
Krung Thai Bank Public Company Limited 34,713,355 34,185,880
Total 85,760,564 102,964,177
Other liabilities
PTT Public Company Limited 5,663,739 7,342,530
Government Savings Bank 16,979 23,890
Krung Thai Bank Public Company Limited 4,464 4,464
Dhipaya Life Assurance Public Company Limited 3,696,210 3,696,210
9,381,392 11,067,094

Total
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

29. Related party transactions (Cont’d)

Key management compensation

The compensation paid or payable to key management for their services for the year ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

2019 2018
Baht Baht
Short-term employee benefits 107,106,580 93,464,171
Post-employment benefits 12,409,232 2,314,740
Other long-term employee benefits 60,147 19,192
Total 119,575,959 95,798,103

30. Assets pledged with registrar

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had placed bank deposit amount of Baht 14 million (2018:
Baht 14 million) as collateral with the registrar in accordance with the Section 19 of Insurance
Act B.E. 2535 (Note 6).

31. Assets reserve pledged with registrar

As at 31 December 2019, bonds and debentures amount of Baht 610.46 million (2018: Baht 590.45
million) had been placed as collateral against premium reserve with the registrar in accordance
with the Section 23 of Insurance Act B.E. 2535 (Note 10).

32. Contribution to Non-life guarantee fund

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had cumulated contribution to Non-life guarantee fund
in accordance with the OIC Notification subject: the Rates, Rules, Procedures, Conditions, and
Period that the Company has to Submit Contribution to the Non-Life Insurance Fund B.E. 2552
of Baht 496.86 million (2018: Baht 442.73 million).
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

34. Restricted assets and commitment

As at 31 December 2019, bonds of Baht 152.75 million (2018: Baht 206.49 million) and
government lottery savings of Baht 10 million (2018: nil) were used as collateral in case where the
insured drivers are alleged offenders and as guarantees for underwriting business, and bank
deposits of Baht 40.55 million (2018: 40.75 million) were used as collateral in case where the
insured drivers are alleged offenders and as guarantee for credit lines with banks (Notes 6 and
10).

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had the undrawn committed borrowing facilities of Baht 10
million at the fixed term deposit interest rate plus 2% per year (2018: Baht 10 million with fixed
term deposit interest rate plus 2% per year).

35. Contingent liabilities and commitment

Operating lease and building construction obligations

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had entered into the lease agreements with third parties for
the building area, tools, constructions and other services over the period of 1 - 3 years in which the
Company is to be liable for lease payment of Baht 114.94 million for 1 year (2018: Baht 126.79
million) and Baht 113.78 million for over 1 year respectively (2018: Baht 70.37 million).

Litigation cases

As at 31 December 2019, the Company was still under legal process in the normal course of the
business as the Company was litigated as the insurer with the prosecution value of Baht 612.21
million (2018: Baht 1,831.49 million) and other cases amount of Baht - million (2018: Baht 0.31
million). However, the Company’s value of contingent liabilities from outstanding litigation cases
should not be more than the policy coverage amount of Baht 540.91 million (2018: Baht 1,262.24
million). Those litigation cases have been still ongoing and the Company expects to win most of
these cases. Nevertheless, the Company recorded the provision for contingent loss amount of
Baht 399.40 million in the financial statements (2018: Baht 788.64 million).

Guarantees
As at 31 December 2019, the Company had unused letters of guarantee issued by banks under

the name of the Company for underwriting business of Baht 19.04 million (2018: Baht 20.89
million).
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

36. Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is
described below.

36.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the Company to incur a financial loss.

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to premium receivables and
amount due from reinsurance. The Company manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit
control policies and procedures and therefore does not expect to incur material financial
losses. In addition, the Company does not have high concentration of credit risk since it has a
large customer base. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts
of premium due and uncollected as stated in the Statement of Financial Position.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

36. Financial instruments (Cont'd)

36.2 Market price risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and securities
prices may affect Company’s financial position.

36.2.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
and the Company’s cash flows will affect due to changes in market interest rate.

The significant financial assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate are
summarised in table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed
interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date (if
this occurs before the maturity date).

2019
Fixed interest rates
Floating Non Interest
Within 1-5 Over interest interest Total Rate
1 year years 5 years rate bearing Baht % p.a.
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank deposits - - - 1,220,952,751 95,579,742 1,316,532,493  0.13-1.80
Debentures with maturity
not over 3 months 180,458,055 - - - - 180,458,055  2.08 - 4.10
Treasury bills with maturity
not over 3 months 229,992,743 - - - - 229,992,743 1.43-1.43
Bill of exchange with maturity
not over 3 months 99,943,313 - - - - 99,943,313 1.48-1.48
Investments in securities, net
Fixed deposits over 3 months 1,963,500,000 - - - - 1,963,500,000 1.00-1.75
Bonds 292,491,501 447,544,735 12,878,919 - - 752,915,155 1.62 - 3.67
Debentures 1,353,067,895  2,621,899,669 352,935,821 - - 4,327,903,385 1.77-7.50
Treasury Bill 299,682,255 - - - - 299,682,255  143-1.43
Total 4,419,135,762  3,069,444,404 365,814,740  1,220,952,751 95,579,742 9,170,927,399
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

36. Financial instruments (Cont'd)

36.2 Market price risk (Cont’d)
36.2.1 Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The significant financial assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate are
summarised in table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed
interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date (if
this occurs before the maturity date).

2018
Fixed interest rates
Floating Non Interest
Within 1-5 Over interest interest Total Rate
1 year years 5 years rate bearing Baht % p.a.
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank deposits - - - 1,683,197,506 176,503,641 1,859,701,147  0.13-2.25
Treasury bills with maturity not
over 3 months 499,971,337 - - - - 499,971,337 1.19-1.55
Investments in securities, net
Fixed deposits over 3 months 2,263,370,321 - - - - 2,263,370,321 0.75-1.70
Bonds 314,750,795 695,726,391 12,860,128 - - 1,023,337,314 1.50-5.63
Debentures 492,996,719  4,281,126,458 29,507,343 - - 4,803,630,520 1.60-7.50
Treasury Bill 778,011,600 - - - - 778,011,600 1.43-1.62
Bill of exchange - - - - - - -
Total 4,349,100,772 4,976,852,849 42,367,471 1,683,197,506 176,503,641 11,228,022,239

36.2.2 Foreign currency risk

The Company considers that there is significant foreign currency risk relating to
receipts of insurance premiums and reinsurance with foreign insurance
companies in foreign currencies which the Company does not buy any monetary
instruments contract to prevent the foreign currency risk. However, the
management believes that the Company has no significant effect because the
traditional reinsurance will use the same foreign currencies as quoted with the
insured.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

36. Financial instruments (Cont'd)

36.2 Market price risk (Cont’d)
36.2.3 Equity position risk

Equity position risk is the risk that changes in the market prices of equity
securities will result in fluctuations in revenues or in the values of financial assets.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had risk from its investments in
securities of which the price will change with reference to market conditions.
Investment Department will manage investment portfolios according to
investment plan approved by Investment Committee and Board of Directors, in
accordance to investment policies under related Notification of Office of
Insurance Commission.

36.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an
inability to sell financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.

The Company manages liquidity risk by considering the proportion between financial
assets and liabilities to be received and paid in each period with respect to Company’s
liquidity.

The Company's financial assets mainly comprises of cash and cash equivalents, invested
assets, and premium due and uncollected which are not yet due or overdue not more
than 1 year, whereas most outstanding due to reinsurers and accrued commission
payable are due within 1 year.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had greater financial assets due within
1 year than financial liabilities to be settled.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

37. Fair value

37.1 Fair value estimation

A fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Methodology of fair value measurement depends upon characteristics of the financial
instruments. For the financial instruments which are regarded as traded in an active
market, fair value has been determined by the latest quoted market price. If however the
appropriate quoted market price cannot be determined, the fair value is determined using an
appropriate valuation technique.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.
The different levels have been defined as follows:

¢ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
(Level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

37. Fair value (Cont'd)

37.1 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value.
2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss
Held-for-trading
investments
Equity securities - - - -
Financial assets at
fair value through
other comprehensive
income
Available-for-sale
investments
Government and
state enterprise

securities

Private enterprise

debt securities
Equity securities
Unit trusts

Total

188 Financial Statement Report

2,410,126,016
2,108,813,409

887,440,765 -
3,679,618,935 -

1,266,616,809 -

887,440,765

3,679,618,935
2,410,126,016
3,375,430,218

4,518,939,425

5,833,676,509 -

10,352,615,934
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

37. Fair value (Cont'd)

37.1 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair

value. (Cont'd)

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss
Held-for-trading

investments
Equity securities

Financial assets at
fair value through
other comprehensive
income
Available-for-sale

investments
Government and
state enterprise
securities
Private enterprise
debt securities
Equity securities
Unit trusts

Total

2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht
341 - - 341

2,330,670,152
3,270,896,072

1,732,502,378 -
4,040,017,153 -

9,473,661 -

1,732,502,378

4,040,017,153
2,330,670,152
3,280,369,733

5,601,566,565

5,781,993,192

11,383,559,757

The Company considers fair value of its financial instruments which are not measured
using fair value method by adopting the followings:

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, and premium receivables are not
materially different from their respective fair values since the financial instruments’ values
are subject to market interest rates or will be due in a short period.

190 Financial Statement Report Annual Report 2019



37.  NAAYADIN (d8)
U 9

37.1  mIUszaNNIIYAALASIIN (d0)

v

funInduazniaunaasusnNiauas

auw%'wzfmamsﬁ%ﬁ%'ui
NAANELASIINA
sumlsaanw
Fuasmuiias
AT

[

%uﬂ%’mfmdmiﬁ%ﬁ%’ug
ﬁa@hqaﬁﬁuﬁ'\uﬁﬂsmﬂvgu
& &

LALES20%

UaINULHaUE
WANNINGIFUIAUAZSPIT MR
ATFIRAMALBNTY
ANEINY

WA

NN

u’%ﬁ’ﬂvlﬁﬁmsﬁﬁmmgammﬁﬁm 29LA

q

o e &
PRANLNTINAIN

UsuN AwaUs:AUNg 910 (UKBU)

Gh)

W.A. 2561
k3 s L3 > v >
aﬂasmu 1 agas:@m 2 agas:@m 3 A
Un Un Un Un
341 - - 341

2,330,670,152
3,270,896,072

1,732,502,378
4,040,017,153

9,473,661

1,732,502,378
4,040,017,153
2,330,670,152
3,280,369,733

5,601,566,565

5,781,993,192

11,383,559,757

A A a a1 W e v ad
ia\‘iNa"n’ldﬂ’l‘SL\‘]uY}vL&lvl@]’mﬂﬂﬂ’nﬂ’JEJ’JIT

' a

URANYADITNAY

3

Busauazmomafisurinduae waaidodsznudpdeiy fnmmuiydhivandrmnyadgds
. ) o o A . X Lo o & A A o A
adnadumszddny iasnnysdnziuegnudanasnideluaae wiadmwuatiszdunioly

TLUTIRDWINE

$1891UUs:91U 2562 shevunwmsiiu. 191



Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

37. Fair value (Cont'd)

37.1 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

The following table presents the fair value of the Company’s significant assets and
liabilities which are not measured using fair value method.

2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht

Assets
Investment in securities
Held-to-maturity
investments
Government and
state enterprise
securities - 824,380,428 - 824,380,428
Private enterprise
debt securities - - -
Deposit at banks - 1,963,500,000 - 1,963,500,000

Others - 15,000,000 - 15,000,000
General investments
Equity securities - - 600,956,364 600,956,364
Investment property - 480,106,005 - 480,106,005
Total assets - 3,282,986,433 600,956,364 3,883,942,797
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

37. Fair value (Cont'd)

37.1 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

The following table presents the fair value of the Company’s significant assets and
liabilities which are not measured using fair value method. (Cont'd)

2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht

Assets
Investment in securities
Held-to-maturity
investments
Government and
state enterprise
securities - 836,476,479 - 836,476,479
Private enterprise
debt securities - - -
Deposit at banks - 2,263,370,321 - 2,263,370,321

Others - 15,000,000 - 15,000,000
General investments
Equity securities - - 657,680,921 657,680,921
Investment property - 497,214,561 - 497,214,561
Total assets - 3,612,061,361 657,680,921 4,269,742,282

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no significant changes in the business

or economic circumstances that affect the fair value of the Company’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. There also were no reclassifications of financial assets.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

37. Fair value (Cont'd)

37.2 Valuation techniques used to derive fair values

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating the fair
values of financial instruments:

(@) Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted
market prices at the Statement of Financial Position date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is
the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

(b)  Financial instruments in level 2

Level 2 debt investments of marketable securities are fair valued based on quoted
last bid price or the yield curve which the Thai Bond Market Association at the close
of business on the Statement of Financial Position date. Level 2 unit trusts are fair
valued using the net asset value of the investment which has majority investing
portion in marketable securities which traded in the Stock Exchange of Thailand
and debt securities which has fair valued announced by Thai Bond Market
Association.

Level 2 fair values of land has been derived using the market comparison
approach. Sales prices of comparable land in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant input into
this valuation approach is price per square wah. The fair value of building and
improvement have been derived using the replacement cost approach, which the
cost per unit arrived from standard cost of construction B.E.2560 annouced by Thai
Appraisal Foundation. The depreciation is determined by the standard depreciation
rate announced by Thai Appraisal Foundation.
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Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

37. Fair value (Cont'd)
37.2 Valuation techniques used to derive fair values (Cont'd)

(c) Financial instruments in level 3

The investment department performs the valuations of financial assets required for
financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to
the assistance managing director. Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the assistance managing director and the valuation team at least once
every quarter, in line with the group’s quarterly reporting dates.

The main Level 3 input used by the Company pertains to estimated cash flows from
gains on securities trading, dividends and/or other benefits to the shareholders. The
discount rate is based on a zero-coupon bond yield, announced by ThaiBMA, plus
appropriate risk premium.

As at 31 December 2019, the discount rate used to compute the fair value is
between 16.30% to 85.00% per annum (2018: 11.70% to 30.00% per annum),
depending on risk premium of each security. Based on the sensitivity analysis,
should the discount rate shifted up by +1%, the other comprehensive income would
decrease by Baht 11.87 million (2018: Baht 24.02 million). On the other hand,
should the discount rate shifted down by -1%, the other comprehensive income
would increase by Baht 12.71 million (2018: Baht 26.88 million).

38. Event after the Statement of Financial Position date
On 25 February 2020, the Board of Directors approved a dividend payment of Baht 1.15 per share,
totaling to the amount of Baht 690,000,000, from net profit for the year ended 31 December

2019. Such dividend payment will be further considered in the Annual General Meeting of
shareholders.

198 Financial Statement Report Annual Report 2019



UsuN AwaUs:AUNg 910 (UKBU)

37.  NAAYASIIN (A8)
u Q
37.2 makanslsziinyadn (da)

(@) e3esfianemaiiule seau 3

' a o

(Al IRV UL ﬂ%ﬁﬂiﬁﬁ’m’]iﬂinﬁ%gﬂﬂ’] BADIINT BIRBNITNINIMITURRTLMIN B

'
A

Twsumsiin 5’3“5\1&&61'1{!@555&5:@]“@1’] 3 anerinnuildnenulasasedansionIsung

U

HaanIla menuuiwmIamu lasfaaimwisnunuumItsaduysdig e

o X " 4 & . s v o o A A o
wmuammawmmﬂmma:vl,mma TIROAANDINUIUNIILIIUI Elvl,@]ill’lﬁ"llﬂ\‘m‘i']ﬂ"‘/l

%

°11aga‘mé’ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ'ﬂlﬂumiﬂsuﬁuyjamqaﬁiimzﬁuﬁ 3 lauA UszunmniInIzustIngaann
yjaﬂ"]ﬁm@’haﬂﬁ%’umnm’sa‘immUmwmi"qu PIDIUUUNY NIDNANDULNUIUNAIAIN
=1

2, v

faruazlasy uszldsanfaanansnsaanidoveswnsiassyuis inof laiiaande

o

N
z . A . A . . A
Awsuwslasaunauanawiing lasuinevairsanuied (Risk Premium) ALANNLas
WA 31 TUINAY W.4. 2562 é’mﬂﬁ@m@ﬁlﬂumiﬂi:mmgaﬂ"]qﬁﬁiiuﬁa Sauas 16.30
' 1% ' & ) o |
019 85.00 diall (W.a. 2561 : Fuaz 11.70 119 30.00 dall) Yo AUTLAFATALTIANNLED
. . o . 9 v & & o a a X o =
(Risk Premium) LlaW1=@128ILARZARNNINE NIhu1naanfaaatAndnsasas 1 9=d
wam:ﬂulﬁﬁﬂww@nmﬁma%aSua@m U 11.87 BIULIN (W.A. 2561 : 24.02 FIBLN)
{ o A o 2o =3 = A a £ °
PYUNRINDAINANNARARISDLAL 1 a:ﬁwam:wulwﬂﬂwmnmwLamﬁmwmu 1w

12.71 SAULIN (W.¢. 2561 : 26.88 a1ULIN)
38, wmanIstmanasini lwuuansgiun1sEn
\WauN 25 NUATWUE W.¢1. 2563 ﬁﬂizqwﬂmaniuﬂﬂiu'*%ﬁﬂ"L@Tﬁuaagﬁaﬁhmﬁuﬂuwmmﬁﬂiqw%

20470ULYFIUN 31 sunay w.a. 2562 ludaniuaz 1.15 11 MudwIudunainonidu 690,000,000
1 lasmadsSudunaszgnivasanlunszvesiszgumaiydtaiudal

sneuuls=9U 2562 shevunwMsiiu. 199



Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited

AUDITOR'’S FEE

Auditor’s Fees

For the last fiscal year 2019, the Company paid the Auditor’s Fees to PricewaterhouseCooper ABAS Ltd., on behalf of Mr. Paiboon

Tunkoon, with details as follows:

1. Auditing Fee 3,959,000 Baht
2. Reviewing Fee for Computer Operation System 917,000 Baht
Total 4,876,000 Baht
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